THE CITY OF

alONECREST

—GEORGI| A—

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr.

Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. ~ District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- Districi 2
Council Member Jazzmin Cobble — District 3 Council Meniber George Turner- District 4

Council Member Diane Adema — District §

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
January 28, 2019
7.00p.m.
3128 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190
Stonecrest, Georgia

I CALL TO @RDER: Mayor Jasen Lary
H, ROLL CALL: Leah Redriquez, Acting City Clerk
IIl. INVYOCATION:
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
V. ADOPTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA:
VI. MINUTES: Approval of Minutes ef the City Council Meeting of January 14, 2019.
VII. PRESENTATION:
Viil. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
IX. AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Amendment to the Purchasing Policy —Mayor

2. Quicket Agreement — Mayer

3. Road Analysis Execution — Mayor

4. Citizens Pothole Oversight Cemmittee — Mayer

5. Pothole tracker — Mayor



XI.

XIIL.

XIII.

XIV.

6. An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2 Article III Adding New Departments — Second
Read

7. SPLOST Program Management — Council Members George Turner & Rob
Turner

8. An Ordinance for the Creation of the Stonecrest Youth Council

9. An Ordinance for the Creation of the Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory
Committee

10. An Ordinance for the Creation of the Historic and Cultural Landmarks
Commission

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

11. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Arabia Mountain Overlay Steering
Committee

12. Resolution to Appoint Members to the Stonecrest Education Committee
13. Resolution to Appoint Members to the Stonecrest Finance Committee

14. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Steering Committee to negotiate the
IGA with the East Metro DeKalb CID

15. Resolution to Appoint Members of the SPLLOST Citizen Oversight Advisory
Committee

16. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Stonecrest Film Committee
PUBLIC HEARINGS:

17. TMOD 18-0007 Modifications to Short Term Vacation Rentals
18. TMOD 18-0008 Arabia Mountain Overlay District Map

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:

CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS:

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS:



XV. ADJOURNMENT:

XVL EXECUTIVE SESSION:

WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING
ISSUES: 1) PERSONNEL, 2} LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE



i)’

m—e—mmm= YHE CITY OF ™=

STONECREST

G EORG I A

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr.

Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. — District Council Member Rob Turner- District 2

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble — District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4

Councit Member Diane Adoma — District 5

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
January 14, 2019
7:00p.m.
3120 Stonectrest Blvd. Suite 190

Stonecrest, Georgia

11.

I11.

1v.

VL

VIL

VIIL

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jason Lary

ROLL CALL: All members were present
INVOCATION: Council Member Rob Turner
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

ADOPTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA:

Council Member George Turner made a motion to adopt the agenda with Council
Member Rob Turner providing the second. The motion carried unanimously.

MINUTES: Approval of Minutes of the City Council Meeting of January 2,2019.

Council Member Rob Turner made a motion to adopt the agenda with Council Member
Clanton providing the second. The motion carried unanimously.

PRESENTATION:

Mr. Kerry Williams a member of the SPLOST Management Oversight Advisory
Committee made a presentation from the committee. There was much discussion
afterwards.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:




IX.

Michelle Emanuel spoke on the condition of the road and a creek at the Lions Gate
subdivision. She also said Council must be on the same page.

Mayor Lary introduced Mr. Dave Marcus the chairperson of the SPLOST Management
Oversight Advisory Commitiee.

Mr. Marcus said everyone in the city wants to see the roads paved. He also said he
agrees with the presentation by Mr. Kerry Williams.

AGENDA ITEMS:

1.

Draft City of Stonecrest 2038 Comprehensive Plan

Mary Darby of the Collaborative Firm gave an overview of the plan and said it
needs to go to the ARC and DCA for review and approval.

Mayor Lary made a motion to send the draft City of Stonecrest 2038
Comprehensive Plan to the ARC and DCA for review and approval. Council
Member Adoma provided the second. The motion carried unanimously.

Contract for the Internal Auditor

Attorney Winston Denmark said in the purchasing policy VIII B Single Source
Procurement speaks on a justifiable reason. He said that section does not provide
any guidance. He said contracts need to be within the purchasing policy and we
need to be careful with single source contracts. He said he is recommending a 6-
month contract with the Internal Auditor and that the policy should be amended.

Mr. Thibodaux said the charter requires the city have an Internal Auditor and he is
a city employee.

Council Member Cobble said this is not just for the City Auditor’s contract, but all
contracts need to be within the purchasing policy.

Council Member Adoma said federal and state laws supersede the local charter.
She said the city is not registered with SAM. She further asked the City Attorney
to do some research and said the city needs to be in compliance.

Mayor Lary asked Mr. Thibodaux if he had anything to say regarding the 6-month
contract. He said he was okay with the contract and the reasoning by the City
Attorney.




XIL

Council Member Clanton made a motion to extend a 6-month contract with
Affirmed Policy Consulting, LLC for Internal Auditor with Councif Member Rob
Turner providing the second. The motion carried unanimously.

3, Resolution setting 2019 Holidays
Council Member Adoma made a motion to approve the Resolution setting the 2019
holidays with Council Member George Turner providing the second. The motion
carried unanimously.

4. Resolution for Service Delivery Strategy Agreement
Mayor Lary made a motion to approve the Resolution for the Service Delivery
Strategy Agreement with Council Member Clanton providing the second. The
motion carried unanimously.
Council Member Adoma made a motion to move items 5-10 to the next Work
Session with Council Member Clanton providing the second. The motion

carried unanimously.

5. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Arabia Mountain Overlay Steering
Committee

6. Resolution to Appoint Members to the Stonecrest Education Committee
7. Resolution to Appoint Members to the Stonecrest Finance Committee

8. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Steering Committee to negotiate the TGA
with the East Metro DeKalb CID

9. Resolution to Appoint Members of the SPLOST Citizen Oversight Advisory
Committee

10. Resolution to Appoint Members of the Stonecrest Film Committee
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:

City Manager Michael Harris introduced Sean DePalma, the new Director of Parks and
Recreation.

CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS: No Comments

MAYOR AND COUNCIHL COMMENTS:




Council Member Cobble had no comments.

Council Member Rob Turner announced he toured New Ground a film company that
opened January 10, 2019.

Council Member Clantont had no comments
Council Member George Turner had no comments

Council Member Adoma said she is an Organic Farmer with the USDA. She said she
did a letter of interest to the EPA to clean up Cole Creek at South River. Council
Member Adoma announced on January 22, 2019 she will host a pothole rally. She
further said she has just got accepted to be a Film Content Delegate at the International
Film Conference in Zanzibar in March 2019.

XIII. ADJOURNMENT:

Council Member Cobble made a motion to adjourn with Council Member Rob Turner
providing the second. The motion carried unanimously at 9:00 p.m.
X1V. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WIiLL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING
ISSUES: 1) PERSONNEL, 2} LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE




THE CiTY OF

GEORGIA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Amendment to the Purchasing Policy

( ) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor and City Attorney

PURPOSE:
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council




5]

[ % B -

~J

10
11
12
13

14
15
16

17
13

19
24
21
22

23
24
25
26

27

28
29
30
31

32
33
34
35
36
37

STATE OF GEORGIA e THE CTY OF mmmm—

g?r%Ngg S(%‘];EEEQIBJ?T SJG ENOERBG .EASJ ORDINANCE 2018- ﬂﬁ"‘ﬁ?

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, AMENDING AND
RESTATING AND READOPTING THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES
PURCHASING POLICY OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA

WHEREAS, the Section 5.06 of the Charter of the City of Stonecrest provides that the City
Council shall by ordinance prescribe procedures for a system of centralized
purchasing for the City; and

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2017, the Mayor and City Council approved the Financial
Management Policies Purchasing Policy for the City of Stonecrest, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to amend and restate the Financial Management
Policies Purchasing Policy for the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, to require the
approval of the City Council on all final Contracts and Amendments valued more
than $25,000.00 and to permit Contracts valued at less than $25,000 to be
approved, executed and delivered by the City Manager or his or her designee; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to amend and restate and readopt the Financial
Management Policies Purchasing Policy of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, as
provided herein.

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1:  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby
amend and restate the Financial Management Policies Purchasing Policy of the City of
Stonecrest, Georgia, as contained in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference.

Section 2:  The Mayer and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, herchy
readopt the Financial Management Policies Purchasing Policy of the City of Stonecrest,
Georgia, as contained in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated hercin by this
reference.

Section 3:

1. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that all sections,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Mayor and City Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional,

2. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that, to the
grealest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence,
clause ot phrase of this Ordinance. 1t is hereby further declared to be the intention of the
Mayor and City Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph,

[2473997/1] 1




STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB p

CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018- fg’:@
38 sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other
39 section, paragraph, sentence, clause ot phrase of this Ordinance.
40
41 3. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
42 shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
43 unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
44 the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,
45 or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid,
46 unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,
47 sentences, paragraphs ot sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed
48 by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
49 Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect, \
50
51 4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of otdinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
52 are hereby expressly repealed.
53
54 5. The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.
55
56 SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the my of 'Dwfvx.:, L. ,2018.
57 Approved: j
58
59 / y
60 Q. N/ g/
61 son Lary, Sr., l\/%yor g
62 .
63
64 As to form:
65
66
67
68 City Attorney
69  Atfest:

" Auyds g

73 Brenda James, City Cler

(2473997/1] 2




/W e

City of Stonecrest, GA Uit (7008

Exhibit “A”

Financial Management Policies

Purchasing Policy




Purchasing Policy

TABLE OF CONTENTS
L PURPOSE 2
II. SCOPE 3
III.  DEFINITIONS 4
IV. ETHICS IN PROCUREMENT 9
V. RESPONSIBILITY 12

A. Purchasing Agent
B. Using Department/Division

VI ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE GOODS AND SERVICES 15
VII. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENTS 16
A. Request for an IWQ

B. Invitations to Bid

C. Request for Proposals

D. Request for Qualifications

E. Invitations to Negotiate

F. Multi-step Solicitations

G. Online Reverse Auction

H. Performance Guarantee

I.  Approval of Awards and Recommendations
J. Forms

VII. NON-COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENTS 23
A. Sole Source Procurement

Single Source Procurement

Direct Negotiation

Emergency Procurement

Costs Under the Competitive Threshold

Direct Negotiation

Real Estate Acquisition

OFEHUOE

IX. GENERAL PROCEDURES AND APPROVAL AUTHORIZATIONS 27

>

PROPERTY DISPOSAL 29

XI. PROJECTS USING FEDERAL AID HIGHWAY PROGRAM (FAHP) 30
FUNDING

XII. CREDIT CARD PURCHASING

1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

PURCHASING POLICY
I Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to state the City’s position regarding the responsibility and authority for the
acquisition and contracting for Goods, Services, Professional Services, Real Estate, and Capital Assets.
This document will clarify purchasing functions and outline purchasing policies, as well as describe
departmental relationships, responsibilities and participation in the procurement cycle. This policy will
provide control functions, assure proper record keeping and confirm purchases in writing to allow the City
to meet the following goals:

A. Maintain at all times and under all conditions a continuous supply of Goods and Services necessary
for the operation of the City;

B. Encourage and promote fair and equal opportunity for all persons doing, or seeking to do, business
with the City;

C. Safegnard the quality and integrity of the City's procurement process;

D. Ensure compliance with laws and regulations pertaining to the procurement of Goods, Services,
Professional Services, Real Estate, Construction Services and Capital Assets;

E. Manage procurement and inventories of purchased Goods to meet the use requirements of City
departments at the most advantageous cost to the City;

F. Administer procurement contracts and contract amendments; and
G. Properly dispose of all material and equipment declared to be surplus or obsolete.

In addition, this policy is to set a standard of environmentally preferable procurement and demonstrate the
City’s commitment to environmental, economic, and social stewardship. The City has a unique opportunity
to further expand its leadership in the area of environmentally preferable purchasing, and through its
actions, elicit changes in the marketplace. By further incorporating environmental considerations into
public purchasing, the City will positively impact human health and the environment, remove unnecessary
hazards from its operations, reduce costs and liabilities, and improve the environmental quality of the
region. This policy will guide the City’s efforts in procuring environmentally preferable Goods and
Services,

The philosophy behind this policy is one of separating the need for Goods and Services from the function
of negotiation and executing the necessary contractual purchase agreement.

The Purchasing Policy outlined herein shall be used in conjunction with the Purchasing Card Policy.

2 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

1. Scope

The scope of this purchasing policy covers the procurement of most Goods and Services for non-
construction purposes without regard to the past method by which the material or service has been or is
customarily procured. The policy covers all contractual and purchase agreements between the City and
another Person, The procurement function includes the initial agreement/purchase, changes and/or re-
negotiations, This policy establishes the specific responsibility and authority of the procurement of
materials and services.

As part of the audit process, the internal controls and accounting processes outsourced to municipal services
Vendors will be evaluated and a measure of assurance given as a requirement of completion of the City’s
annual audit, The staff of outsourced municipal services Vendors assigned to work at City offices and
perform purchasing activities on behalf of the City is not exempt from the City’s adopted Purchasing Policy.
Furthermore, unless due to the lack of competitive options, the City will not typically procure Goods and
Services from outsourced municipal services Vendors not expressly stated in their contract to provide
municipal services or which do not have a direct impact on the Vendor’s ability to provide those contracted
services.

The provisions of this policy do not apply to procurements for the following:

A. Public works construction contracts to the extent governed by O.C.G.A. §36-91-1 et seq;

B. Services and construction whose procurement falls under a conflicting federal or Georgia statute;

C. Land, artistic work, or other goods whose inherent nature is unique and cannot be competitively
compared to other goods within its class, except as provided in Section VIII. Real Estate
Acquisition,

D. Employee Benefits and health related services procured through a quotation and negotiating
process conducted by an expert in the field, or to maintain continuity of employee-health records;

E. Travel, entertainment, conferences, training, speakers, instructors, facilitators, and meeting
expenses, or other expenditures covered by another City policy;

F, Insurance procured through a negotiating process;

G. Items or services procured for resale or to generate a revenue;
H. Advertising;

I. Subscriptions and dues established during the budget process;

I, Utilities;
K. Seized Property included in a court order authorizing disposal; and

L. Contracts involving federal funding whose procurement falls under a conflicting federal or Georgia
statute or regulation, except as provided in Section XI.

3 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

111

Definitions

When uvsed in this policy, the following words, terms and phrases, and their derivations, shall have the
meaning ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning;

A.

ADDENDUM means a change, clarification or correction in the Solicitation Documents, prior to
the award of a Contract,

AMENDMENT means an agreed upon change order, addition to, deletion from, correction or
modification of a Contract including 2 Contract Exiension or a Confract Renewal,

APPEAL means a specific written objection by an interested Person to a Request for Qualifications,
a Request for an IWQ, an Invitation for Bid, an Invitation to Negotiate, a Request for proposal, or
an award or proposed award of a Contract, with the intention of receiving a remedial result.

BID / PROPOSAL BOND means a form of bid security executed by the Bidder (or Proposer) as
principal and by a Surety, to guarantee that the Bidder (or Proposer) will enter into a Contract
within the time specified in the Invitation for Bid or Request for proposals, and will furnish the
necessary bonds and insurance, and meet any other requirements of those documents,

BIDDER means a person or entity submitting a bid or quote to the City for the supply of Goods or
Services.

BUYING COOPERATIVE OR ALLIANCE means a group of public entity purchasers organized
for the purpose of creating contracts or pricing agreements in order to take advantage of group or
quantity buying discounts or special pricing from which members of the group can benefit.

CAPITAL ASSET is an item of personal property having a normal life expectancy of three years
or more other than components.

CITY means the City of Stonecrest and, as the context warrants, those persons or bodies authorized
to act on its behalf, including but not limited to the City Council, committees, boards and staff,

CITY ETHICS POLICY shall mean Article X, Ethics, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code
of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia.

CITY FINANCE DIRECTOR/FINANCE DIRECTOR means the City Accountant as described in
the City Charter, his agent, or the department head of the City Finance Department, if such a
department is in existence.

COMPETITIVE AWARD means a procurement based upon the outcome of one of the competitive
processes set forth in this Policy, where award is made based on the lowest quotation or Bid
submitted by a responsible and responsive Bider or to the most qualified or advantageous Proposer
based on the qualitative and/or quantitative factors identified for the procurement. A Competitive
Award can be made even if only a single bid or proposal has been received from a Bidder or
Proposer who is determined to be responsible and responsive.

4 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

L.

CONSTRUCTION means the process of building, altering, improving or demolishing any public
structure or building, or other public improvements of any kind to any public real property
including the provision of materials therefor. The term “Construction” does not include the routine
operation, repair and/or maintenance of existing structures, buildings or real property.

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES means services rendered by an independent and licensed contractor
having expertise in Construction.

CONTRACT means all types of City agreements for the purchase or disposal of Goods, Real Estate
or Capital Assets, and the procurement of Services, Professional Services or Construction Services
regardless of what they may be called, including contracts for a fixed price, cost plus a fixed fee,
incentive contracts, and contracts providing for the issuance of job or task orders, leases, letter
contracts and purchase orders. Confracts also include Amendments, modifications and
supplemental agreements with respect to any of the foregoing, Every Contract must be duly
authorized and approved prior to execution.

CONTRACT EXTENSION means an Amendment to a Contract that includes an increase in the
term of a Contract, for which no options to renew the Contract beyond the current expiration date
exist,

CONTRACT RENEWAL means an exercise of an approved, existing option to increase the term
of a Contract. Options to renew a Contract are often done in annual increments.

EMPLOYEE means an individual drawing a salary or wage from the City whether on a fuli-time
or part-time basis. The term shall encompass all members of the City Council without regard to
whether or not such individuals are compensated. For purposes of this Purchasing Policy the term
“employee” shall include, any Vendor or any employee of such Vendor who has entered into a
Contract with the City to provide administrative and department services contemplated in Section
2.12 of the Charter of the City.

EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT means any procurement of Goods, Capital Assets, Services or
Professional Services in the context of an Emergency.

EMERGENCY means a situation that occurs suddenly and unexpectedly and demands immediate
action to prevent delays which may vitally affect the health, safety or welfare of the public or City
Employees and affects the continuation of services to the citizens, and/or serious loss or injury to
the City. Emergency shall also mean a condition, malfunction, or occurrence in which the
immediate procurement of an item (i.e. Good, Services, or Professional Service) is essential to
comply with regulatory requirements.

ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE GOODS AND SERVICES means Goods and Services
that have a lesser or reduced negative effect on human health and the environment when compared
with competitive Goods and Services that serve the same purpose.

GIFTS or FAVORS means anything of any service or value. Value shall as defined in any City of
Stonecrest ethics policy.

GOODS or COMMODITIES means supplies, apparatus, materials, equipment and other forms of
tangible personal property used by a City department in the accomplishment of its responsibilities
other than Capital Assets.

5 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

AA,

BB.

CC.

DD.

EE.

FFE.

GG.

GOVERNING AUTHORITY means the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest or its
designee(s).

INFORMAL WRITTEN QUOTES (IWQ) means all documents utilized for soliciting quotations
for Goods, Services, or Professional Services, in which award is made based on the lowest
responsive and responsible quotation and in which the type or cost of the procurement does not
require a more formal Bid or proposal process.

INVITATION FOR BID (IFB) means all documents utilized for soliciting bids, including those
attached or incorporated by reference. These include a scope of work and all contractual terms and
conditions applicable to the procurement. Bids are requested when requirements are clearly
defined, price is the major determining factor for award, and a formal sealed submittal is required.

INVITATION TO NEGOTIATE (ITN) means documents used for soliciting competitive proposals
in which negotiation of price and other factors is to commence after receipt of proposals and prior
to recommendation of award. This process may be used when the scope of work is complex or
difficult to define, if strict comparison of Services or Goods required may be difficult because
components are likely to vary among Proposers or in any situation when it is in the City’s best
interest to negotiate prior to recommendation of award to obtain the Setvices or Goods that best
meet the City’s needs, price and other factors being considered.

LATE BID/PROPOSAL means a Bid or proposal received after the time or date such bid or
proposal was due, as stated in the Solicitation Documents.

LIFE CYCLE COST ASSESSMENT means the comprehensive accounting of the total cost of
ownership, including initial costs, energy and operational costs, longevity and efficacy of service
and disposai costs.

MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE CONTRACT means a Contract based upon one solicitation
awarded to two or more Vendors to supply Goods or Services.

NEGOTIATED AWARD means a procurement made as the result of negotiations between the City
and a Supplier, such as a Sole Source Procurement or Single Source Procurement or another
instance, including competitive Invitation to Negotiate, where a Contract award based on direct
negotiations with a Supplier of Goods or Services is appropriate.

OFFICIAL means any City elected or appointed person who holds office or any person appointed
by the mayor and council of the City to serve on (1) the planning commission of the City, (2) any
board or commission of the City having quasi-judicial authority; and, (3) any authority created by
the City, either individually or jointly with other local governments pursuant to Georgia law.

ONLINE REVERSE AUCTION means a purchasing method wherein Bidders enter prices for
items electronically, and their prices are displayed for other bidders to see with all Bidders given
the opportunity to continually bid a lower price until the time period of the bid expires.

ORDINANCE means related Administration Ordinance in Chapter 2 of the City’s Municipal Code.

PAYMENT TERMS means the established due date for payments by the City to pay an invoice.
Absent any agreement otherwise stated, the City’s payment term will be Net 30.

6 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

1I.

I

LL.

MM.

00.

PP.

QQ.

SS.

TT.

PERFORMANCE BOND means a bond provided by a contractor/supplier in which a surety
guarantees to the City that the Goods or Capital Assets are delivered or the Services or Construction
Services are performed in accordance with the Contract documents. A letter of credit issued by a
financial institution that meets the City’s requirements may, at the reasonable discretion of the City,
be substituted for the performance bond.

PERSON means any business, entity, company, firm, individual, union, committee, club or other
organization or group of individuals,

PRACTICABLE means satisfactory and within reason when considering price, performance,
availability, compatibility with specified operation, and public safety.

PRE-QUALIFICATION means the part of a competitive procurement process in which the City
determines, based on standards developed for a specified product or service, which interested
Vendors meet those standards and are eligible for further consideration in the purchasing process.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES means services rendered by an independent contracting individual
or firm having expertise in a particular industry or subject matter due to specialized education,
training, licensure or skill, and consisting primarily of advice reports, conclusions,
recommendations or other outputs resulting from the time and effort of the service provider, as
opposed to the acquisition of specific commodities, or of services not requiring any specialized
education, licensing, training or skill (e.g. janitorial services). Professional Services include but are
not limited to evaluations, consultations, management systems, management consulting, compiling
statistical data, support of planning and operating activities, appraisal services, and research and
development studies or reports.

PROPOSER means a Person submitting a proposal or qualifications to the City for the supply of
Goods, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Construction Services, Services, or Professional Services.

PURCHASE ORDER means a document approved and issued by the Purchasing Agent or designee
and accepted by the Vendor to obtain Goods, Capital Assets, and Services.

PURCHASING is the process of securing real estate, capital assets, materials, services, repairs,
leases and rentals necessary for the operation and support of the City. The renewal, renegotiations
and changes to Contracts, leases and agreements are functions of purchasing,

PURCHASING AGENT means the principal purchasing official of the City who is authorized and
appointed to purchase a range of Goods, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Services, Construction
Services, or Professional Services on a routine basis.

REAL ESTATE means land and any improvements and appurtenances thereto,

REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION means the acquisition of a fee interest, estate for years or usufruct
in Real Estate by purchase or lease.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) means all documents utilized for soliciting proposals for
Goods, Capital Assets or Services, including those attached or incorporated by reference. These
include a scope of work and ali contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement.
This method is used when factors in addition to price are considered for award.

7 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

UU. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) means all documents utilized for soliciting
qualifications for Goods, Services, Capital Assets, Construction Services or Professional Services.

VV. REQUISITION means an internal document, provided by a department to the Purchasing Agent
that contains the fund source, approvals, descriptions, quantities and other information about the
Goods, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Services, Construction Services or Professional Services in
order to proceed with the procurement. The Requisition becomes valid when properly completed
and approved.

WW. RESPONSIBLE BIDDER OR PROPOSER means a Person, who, in the exclusive judgment of the
City, (a) has the capability in all respects to fully perform the Contract requirements; and (b) the
integrity, experience, qualification, and reliability which assures good faith performance.

XX. RESPONSIVE BIDDER OR PROPOSER means a Person, who, in the exclusive judgment of the
City, has submitted a bid or proposal that conforms in all material respects to the Solicitation
Documents.

YY, SERVICES mean any performance of effort or labor, for which the City has contracted other than
Professional Services or Construction Services, Services include, but are not limited to, janitorial,
landscaping, and street striping.

ZZ. SHORTLISTING means the part of a competitive procurement process in which the City
determines, based on criteria developed for a specified Good, Service, or Professional Service
which of the interested Vendors are the best qualified to be eligible for further consideration in the
purchasing process.

AAA SINGLE-SOURCE PROCUREMENT means identifying and using, without first completing a
competitive process, one source for Goods, Capital Assets, Real Fstate, Services, Professional
Services or Construction Services among others in a competitive marketplace, which, for justifiable
reasons, is found to be most advantageous for the purpose of fulfilling a given Purchasing need of
the City.

BBB. SOLE-SOURCE PROCUREMENT means identifying and using, without first completing a
competitive process, one source for Goods, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Services, Professional
Services or Construction Services when that source is the only one available that can fulfill a given
Purchasing need of the City.

CCC. SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS means an Invitation for Bids, Request for proposals, Request for
Qualifications, Request for Quotations, or an Invitation to Negotiate including all of the associated
forms and documents of each solicitation, or any other types of documents used by the City to
procure Goods, Services, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Construction Services or Professional
Services.

DDD.SPECIFICATION OR SCOPE OF WORK means any description of the physical or functional
characteristics, or of the nature of Goods, Services, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Construction
Services or Professional Services. Specifications or Scope of Work may include any function and
other criteria that will be required to perform the work and a description of any requirement for
inspection, testing, or delivery.

8 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

EEE. SUPPLIER, MERCHANT OR VENDOR means a Person currently supplying or in the business of
supplying Goods, Services, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Construction Services or Professional
Services.

FFF. SURETY means an organization who, for a consideration, promises in writing to make good the
debt or default of another organization. The Surety must be satisfactory to the City and licensed to
do business in Georgia.

GGG.THE USING DEPARTMENT/DIVISION (User) is defined as the department which has the
authority and responsibility for determining the need for an item or service, its related
specifications, and need date. The User is responsibie for funding the need and advising Purchasing
of the approved funding and the specific budget account number. The User is responsible for
authorizing the purchases of all materials, services, repairs, leases and rentals in which the
negotiated price exceeds the approved funding.

IV. Ethiecs in Procurement

Each person involved in the procurement process must adhere fo a high standard of ethics. Each will be
bound by the City Code of Ethics and this Article IV. Whenever this Article IV conflicts with the City
Code of Ethics, the City Code of Ethics shall control,

A. Employee Conflict of Interest

It shall be unethical for any City Employee or Official to transact any business or participate directly
or indirectly in a procurement Contract when the Employee or Official knows that:

1.

The Employee or Official or immediate family of such Employee or Official has a substantial
interest pertaining to the procurement Contract, except that the purchase of Goods and Services
from businesses which a member of the City Council or other City Employee has a substantial
interest is authorized as per O.C.G.A. § 36-1-14, or the procurement Contract is awarded
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 45-10-22 and § 45-10-24, or the transaction is excepted from said
restrictions by O.C.G.A. § 45-10-25, interpreting such statutes as if they were applicable to a
municipality.

Any other person, business or organization with whom the Employee, Official or immediate
family of such Employee or Official is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning
prospective employment is involved in the procurement Contract.

An Employee, Official or any immediate family of such Employee or Official who holds a
substantial interest in a disclosed blind trust shall not be deemed to have a conflict of interest
with regard to matiers pertaining to that substantial interest.

All Employees and Officials will be asked to sign a disclosure document indicating his or her
compliance with the City Ethics Policy.

The terms “immediate family” and “substantial interest” shall have the meaning given to such
terms in the City Code of Ethics.

9 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

B. Gratuities, Rebates or Kickbacks

1.

Gratuities. It shall be unethical for any person to offer, give, or agree to give any Employee or
Official or for any Employee or Official to solicit, demand, accept, or agree to accept from
another person, a gratuity, rebate, loan an offer of employment or other services or property of
value in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation or preparation
of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any
specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any
other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination,
claim or controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement or a
Contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefore in any manner inconsistent
with the State of Georgia’s Department of Administrative Services Gratuity Policy. Rebates
normally or routinely offered to customers in the ordinary course of business of such Vendor
for the purchase of their Goods and Services are acceptable and are the property of the City.

Nothing in this section shall preclude an Employee or Official of the City from attending
seminars, courses, lectures, briefings, or similar functions at any Vendor's facility or at any
other place if any such seminar, course, lecture, briefing, or similar function is for the purpose
of furnishing the Official, Employee, or Agent with knowledge and information relative to the
Vendor's products or services and is one which the City Manager determines would be of
benefit to the City.

In connection with any such seminar, course, lecture, briefing, or similar function, nothing shall
preclude the Employee or Official from receiving meals or educational materials and business
related items of not more than nominal value from a Vendor,

Nothing contained in this section shall permit the Employee or Official to accept travel or
lodging for less than the value thereof from any Vendor.

Kickbacks and Rebates. It shall be unethical for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment
to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a Contract to the prime contractor or higher
tier subcontractor, or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a
subcontract or order.

Contract Clause. The prohibition against gratuities, rebates and kickbacks prescribed in this
Section shall be conspicuously set forth in every Contract and Solicitation Documents
therefore,

Courtesies. Employees may accept for themselves and members of their families common
courtesies usually associated with customary business practices so long as a sirict standard is
enforced with respect to gifts, services, discounts, entertainment or consideration of any kind
from suppliers of merchandise, services, supplies, etc, to the City. An example of a common
courtesy is free pens or notepads with the Vendor’s name on them.

Cash. It is never permissible for an Employee or Official to accept a gift in cash, cash
equivalents, stocks or other forms of marketable securities of any amount.

C. Prohibition Against Contingent Fees

10 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

It shall be unethical for a person to be retained, or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a Contract
upon any agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee,
except for agreements with manufacturer representatives, or agents, including but not limited to
commercial services sales agents engaged in the business of soliciting contracts on behalf of
Vendors.

D. Use of Confidential Information
It shall be unethical for any Employee or Official knowingly to disclose or use confidential
information for actual or anticipated personal gain, or for the actual or anticipated personal gain of

any other person.

E. Unauthorized Purchases

No purchases of Goods and Services shall be made in the name of the City or one of'its departments,
except such as is required for official use by the City or one of its departments, Purchases in the
name of the City or a department for personal use by an individual or for other than official use are
prohibited, and no City funds will be expended or advanced therefore,

F. Penalties and Sanctions

1. Legal or disciplinary action by City Council. The City Council may take appropriate legal
and/or disciplinary actions pursnant to the City Code of Ethics against any Employee, Official
or other Person in violation of these ethical standards.

2. Legal or disciplinary action by City Manager. The City Manager is authorized to take any
appropriate legal and/or disciplinary actions, including dismissal, of any Employee violating
this Ethics Policy.

3. Administrative penalties for Employees. The City Manager may impose any one or more of
the following penalties or sanctions on an Employee for violations of the ethical standards in
this Section as appropriate to the situation, subject {o the Personnel Manual or other appropriate
appeals procedures:

a) Oral or written warnings or reprimands,

b) Suspensions with or without pay for specified periods of time.

¢) Termination of employment.

4. Administrative penalties for outside contractors/Vendors. The City may impose any one or
more of the following penalties or sanctions on a Vendor or other Person or organization for
violations of these ethical standards:

a) Written warnings or reprimands.

b) Termination of Contracts.

¢) Debarment or suspension.

11 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

G. Disclaimer of Responsibility for Improper Purchasing

The City may disclaim responsibility and liability for any purchase, expenditure, or agreement for
expenditure arising from any procurement made in its name, or in the name of any governmental
body under its authority, by an unauthorized person or any person acting outside this Policy or the
authorization or delegation as provided in this Policy. The expense of any such disclaimed
transaction will become the personal liability of the individual who acted improperly.

H. Vendor Contact During Open Solicitations

Persons seeking an award of a City contract may not initiate or continue any verbal or written
communications regarding a solicitation with any Official, Employee or other City representative
other than the Purchasing Agent named in the solicitation between the date of the issuance of the
solicitation and the date of the final contract award, The City Manager or designee will review
violations. If determined that such communication has compromised the competitive process, the
offer submitted by the individual, firm or business may be disqualified from consideration for
award.

V. Responsibility

A. Purchasing Agent

The City Council appoints the City Manager, or such other Employee appointed by the City
Manager, to serve as the Purchasing Agent for the City, or the City Council may contract with an
independent third party to serve as the Purchasing Agent under the direction and control of the City
Manager (City Code Chapter __, Article |, Section ___ ).

DUTIES: The Purchasing Agent shall have the following duties and powers:

1. Arrange and negotiate the purchase or Contract for all equipment, supplies and contractual
services for the City or any using agency; arrange and negotiate for the sale or otherwise
dispose of all surplus equipment and supplies or real estate of the City or any using agency,
subject to the approval of the City Manager and/or the City Council.

2. Maintain a perpetual or periodic inventory record of all materials, supplies, software, or
equipment stored in city storerooms, warehouses, and elsewhere, including monthly reports to
the Finance Director that include:

a) Titles of all formal solicitations and the method of source selections to be used,

b) Contracts authorized by the City Council, the method of source selection used and the
total doliar amount.

¢) Emergency Contracts awarded pursuant to Section 1.03 of the City’s Charter.

d) Change orders or Contract modifications authorized by the City Council and the dollar
amount and reason.

12 FINANCIAL. MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

10.

11.

12.

e) Amendments or change orders authorized by the Purchasing Agent and the dollar
amount and reason.

f) Explanation of any changes, and the costs involved, in the scope of services made
between the time a Contract is awarded and the time that the Contract is authorized by
the City Council.

g) Documentation of the types, quantities, and dollar amounts of environmentally
preferable Goods (including the percentage of post-consumer and total recovered
material content) and Services purchased. The report shall also include dollar amounts
of non-environmental or conventional Goods and Services, identify and discuss
instances where this policy is waived or its requirements found impracticable, and
highlight barriers to the procurement of environmentally preferable Goods and
Services, if applicable.

Manage and supervise purchasing staff.
Control and supervise all City storerooms and warehouses.

Maintain and adhere to all City purchasing procedures and purchasing procedures manual
which will be updated by City Manager periodically.

Establish guidelines, within the purchasing procedures manual, governing the review and
approval of specifications for procurement of Goods, Capital Assets and Services based on
recyclability, energy and water conservation, life cycle cost, and other environmental
considerations.

Direct efforts to procute Goods, Capital Assets, Real Estate, Services, Construction Services
and Professional Services in accordance with the requirements of this Purchasing Policy, the
Code of the City of Stonecrest and Georgia law.

Where in the best interest of the City, require Bid/Proposal Bonds, insurance and other forms
of protection for the City on the process of procuring Goods, Capital Assets, Services and
Construction Services for the City.

Terminate solicitations for bids for any Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction Services
and Professional Services when, in the opinion of the Purchasing Agent, it is in the City’s best
interest to do so.

Reject any and all bids, when in the opinion of the Purchasing Agent it is in the City’s best
interest to do so.

Consult with the City Attorney if a contracting party breaches or is reasonably anticipated to
breach its Contract with the City.

The City Council shall approve final Contracts and Amendments valued more than $25,000.00
and execute and bind the City to such agreements, Contracts valued at less than $25,000.00
may be approved, executed and delivered by the City Manager or designee of the City Manager
with a copy of said contract to be delivered to the City Council by the City Clerk via email. No

13 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

13,

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

Contract shall be approved pursuant to this Subsection 12, unless the funds therefor have been
appropriated in the budget of the City or otherwise by the City Council.

Advise the Finance Director and City Manager on the status of negotiations, as well as Contract
provisions and their impacts on the City.

Make recommendations on Contract approval, rejection, Amendment, and cancellation.
Provide Contract administration and supervision of Contracts. Such tasks shall include, but not
be limited to, monitoring Amendments, obtaining applicable insurance certificates and
monitoring applicable progress.

Plan and implement processes for the ongoing protection of the City’s interests.

Recommend and implement policies and procedures to provide for compliance with laws
related to bidding, Contracting and Purchasing as set forth in the State of Georgia Code and
Regulations, by examining the applicable laws and developing procedures for bidding,

Contracting and procurement processes.

Ensure all Contracts are reviewed and approved by the City Attorney as required by Section
3.08 of the City Charter.

Whenever possible, utilize City-generated and City Attorney-approved standard goods/services
purchasing agreements.

Ensure Council is notified as soon as reasonably possible of all upcoming and active
competitive procurements.

Ensure all procurements over $25,000.00 have Council approval.

B. Using Department/Division (User)

Determine Need: The User is responsible for determining the need for a material or service
and providing appropriate documentation and justification therefor, including a purchase
requisition.

Determine Funding: The User is responsible for providing proper funding. Specific budget
account numbers must be on the purchase requisition.

Determine Specifications: The User is responsible for determining the quantity, quality,
dimensions, duration and all other necessary specifications essential to the determination of
what is to be procured. The specifications must, where applicable, conform to the approved
City standards for identity and continuity.

Purchase Requisition: Tt is imperative that the User transmits its need to the Purchasing Agent.
The Purchasing Agent can only purchase supplies and services on the basis of an approved and
completed Requisition. A properly approved Requisition contains, as a minimum, the
following information:

14 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

a) Complete description and specifications.

b} Quantity.

¢) Need date (lead time of at least one week, must be allowed).
d) Estimated cost.

e) Freight.

) Complete budget account numbet.

g) Previous purchase information or quotation (if known).

h) Known or suggested Vendor(s).

i) Authorized approval of department head and division head.
1) Authorized approval from the Budget/Finance Department.

5. Acceptance of Procured Item or Service: Within 24 hours, the User is responsible for advising
the Purchasing Office in writing on a receiving report the receipt of the Goods procured and
whether or not such Goods are found to be unsatisfactory.

VL Environmentally Preferable Goods and Services

In determining which Goods, Capital Assets and Services to purchase, the City shall integrate
environmental factors into the City’s procurement decisions, when available and commercially practicable
in the reasonable discretion of the User. At a minimum, the City shall strive to whenever possible and

practicable:

1. Purchase copy, computer, and fax paper with at least 30 percent post- consumer recycled
content;

2. Purchase non-emergency fleet vehicles that provide the best available net reduction in vehicle
fleet emissions, including but not limited to the purchase of alternative fueled and hybrid
vehicles;

3. Consider purchasing lower emission emergency fleet vehicles with comparable specifications
for performance, safety, and fuel availability during emergencies as conventionally-powered
emergency fleet vehicles;

4. Purchase at least Energy Star rated equipment and appliances for use in local government
facilities when practicable based upon considerations of Life Cycle Costs;

5. Purchase water-saving products, including WaterSense labeled, whenever practicable,
including but not limited to, high performance fixtures such as toilets (1.28 gallons per flush

15 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

or less), urinals (0.5 gallons per flush or less), low-flow faucets (1.5 gallons per minute or less),
aerators, and upgraded high-efficiency irrigation systems;

6. Replace disposable with re-usable, recyclable, or compostable Goods;
7. Consider Life Cycle Cost Assessment; and

8. Evaluate, as appropriate, the environmental performance of Vendors in providing Goods and
Services,

This analysis to determine environmentally preferable Goods Services may include raw materials
acquisition, production, manufacturing, packaging, distribution, reuse, operation, maintenance, disposal of

products, or service delivery.

Specifically, factors that should be considered by the User when determining that Goods have
environmentally preferable attributes include, but are not limited to:

1. Minimization of virgin, unrecycled material used in Goods;

2. Maximization of recycled materials used in Goods;

3. Life cycle economics of Goods and Services;

4. Reuse of existing Goods or materials in Goods;

5. Recyclability, biodegradability and compostability of Goods;

6. Minimization of packaging;

7. Reduction of energy and fuel consumption;

8. Reduction of water consumption;

9. Toxicity reduction or elimination,

10. Durability and maintenance requirements; and

11. Ultimate disposal of the Goods.
VII, Preference for Products Manufactured in Georgia
When contracting for or purchasing supplies, materials, equipment, or agricultural products, excluding
beverages for immediate consumption, the City shall give preference, as far as may be reasonable,
economical, and practicable, to such supplies, materials, equipment, and agricultural products as may be
manufactured or produced in the State of Georgia. Such preference shall not sacrifice quality.
In determining whether such a preference is reasonable in any case where the value of a contract for or
purchase of such supplies, materials, equipment, or agricultural products exceeds $100,000.00, the City

shall consider, among other factors, information submitted by the bidder which may include the bidder's
estimate of the multiplier effect on gross state domestic product and the effect on public revenues of the

16 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

state and the effect on public revenues of political subdivisions resulting from acceptance of a bid or offer
to sell Georgia manufactured or produced goods as opposed to out-of-state manufactured or produced

goods,

Any such estimates shall be in writing. The City shall not divide a contract or purchase which

exceeds $100,000.00 for the sole purpose of avoiding these requirements.

Vi1,

A,

Competitive Procurements

Reaquest for Informal Written Quotes (TWQ)

Requests for Informal Written Quotes (IWQ) are prepared and issued with the goal of obtaining
competitive responses.

Public notice is posted on the Purchasing Agent’s Internet Web Page for all Requests for an IWQ
in which the value is expected to exceed $50,000.00. Additional public notice may be provided for
solicitations that, in the sole discretion of the City, are of the size, type, or dollar value that make
additional public notice appropriate.

Quotations are opened by the Purchasing Agent at the location indicated and on or after the due
date indicated in the Request for an IWQ. A split or partial quotation may be awarded, if a Request
for an TWQ is for multiple Goods or Services, more than one Vendor provides a quotation that
meets the specifications for the items, and a price comparison can be made between the items
quoted. The award may be split between more than one Vendor by awarding to the lowest cost
provider of each item or reasonable grouping of items if acquisition, delivery, and other
requirements can be reasonably administered. A Split or Partial Quotation Award shall not be used
under the following conditions:

a) When the solicitation is for an integrated system and the split of the award between
components or parts of that system would jeopardize performance; or

b) If the item is part of a system and the perforinance of that system would be jeopardized
if another brand was substituted.

Tie quotations are handled in the same way as tie bids.

Invitation for Bids

Invitation for Bids (IFB) are prepared and issued to prospective Bidders, with the goal of obtaining
competitive responses in the procurement of Goods, Capital Assets, Services and Construction
Services.

Public notice (such as publication in a newspaper of general circulation or posting on the
Purchasing Agent’s Internet Web page) of the IFB must be given a minimum of fourteen (14)
calendar days prior to the date set for bid opening, unless it can be demonstrated that an Emergency
requirement for Goods Capital Assets, Services or Construction Services exists, in which instance,
the requirement for public notice may be reduced by the Purchasing Agent.

Bids shall be opened publicly in the presence of the Purchasing Agent or the designee of the
Purchasing Agent and at least one other witness at the time and place designated in the Invitation
for Bids. All relevant information, including each Bid amount and Bidder's name, will be recorded
on a summary sheet.

17 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

Split or partial bid awards may be awarded with the same guidelines and restrictions as those
provided for split or partial quotation awards.

Tie Bids: In the event two or more identical bids are received, the following procedure will be used
when the basis of award is low bid:

a) To the extent permitted by law, a tie Bidder from a Person having an office within the
limits of the City would be recommended to the appropriate approving authority for an
award over one without an office in the City. A Person within the state of Georgia
would be recommended to the appropriate approving authority for an award over one
without an office in Georgia.

b) If the procedures in (a) above does not result in an award, then, the tie Bidders will be
contacted and advised of the tie and asked if they wish to reduce their bid in writing
submitted in a sealed envelope to be opened at the time and place stated by the
Purchasing Agent or the designee of the Purchasing Agent. If one or more of the tied
Bidders agrees to participate, award will be made to the new low bid. If none of the
tied Bidders agree to participate or if the new bids are tied, then City staff shall break
the tie by following the procedures described below, as necessary.

c) If the procedures in (a) and (b) above do not result in an award, then, to the extent
permitted by law, a tie Bidder for Goods or Capital Assets deemed in the City’s sole
discretion to provide the most environmentally preferable Goods would be
recommended to the appropriate approving authority for an award over one deemed
environmentally inferior.

d) If the procedures above do not result in an award, then, the Purchasing Agent or the
designee of the Purchasing Agent in the presence of at least two witnesses will flip a
coin one time. Award to the winner of the coin flip will be recommended to the
appropriate approving authority.

Correction or withdrawal of inadvertently erroneous bids is permitted in accordance to the terms
indicated within the IFB; however, minor trregularities may be waived by the City. No bid may be
withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days after the time scheduled for bid opening, or as otherwise
stated in the IFB.

Late bids will be rejected and retumed unopened.

Bids will be evaluated based on the qualification factors set forth in the IFB, which may include
criteria to determine acceptability of Goods or Capital Assets (for example, inspection, testing,
quality, workmanship, delivery, and suitability for a particular purpose). Criteria for the
acceptability of Goods or Capital Assets shall be used to determine whether particular Goods are
responsive to the TFB, and not to determine the relative desirability between acceptable Goods or
Capital Assets. The City reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities of bids, to
request clarification of information submitted in any bid, to further negotiate with the Responsive
and Responsible Bidder selected for Coniract award, or to reject any or all bids for any reason
whatsoever.

18 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

Except as otherwise provided by law, if no Responsive and Responsible Bids are received or all
bids are rejected, the City may procure such Goods and Services by direct negotiation as indicated
below in Non-Competitive Procurement of Goods and Services.

The Bid will be awarded, if an award is made, to the Responsible and Responsive Bidder offering
the lowest price whose bid meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bid.
The Bid may require a Coniract.

C. Request for Proposals (REP)

When the Purchasing Agent determines the use of an Invitation for Bids is not practical or not
advantageous because of existing market conditions or the type of items required, the City may
procure Goods, Capital Assets, Services, or Construction Services through receipt of competitive
sealed proposals. Competitive sealed proposals are solicited through the use of an RFP, with the
goal of obtaining competitive responses.

Public notice of the RFP shall be given in the same manner as the procurement described in section
VII, sub-section A of this policy.

Proposals shall be opened publicly by the Purchasing Agent, in the presence of one or more
witnesses at the time and place designated in the RFP. A register of proposals is prepared that lists
each Proposer's name. Interested persons shall have access to information regarding procurement
transactions of the City in accordance with City policy and the Georgia Open Records Act,
0.C.G.A.§50-18-70 et seq.

All meetings of the City’s Council are duly noticed public meetings and all documents submitted
to the City as a part of or in connection with a Proposal may constitute public records under Georgia
law regardless of any person’s claim that proprietary or trade secret information is contained
therein. Unless otherwise provided herein, by submission to the City, Proposers waive any claim
to the proprietary nature of submitted information. The Proposer may designate in the smallest
increments possible, that part of the qualifications which is deemed to be proprietary, which, subject
to the City’s reasonable determination, shall be redacted for purposes of the public agenda.
Proposals and all related correspondence are governed by the Georgia Open Records Act and shall
be provided to anyone properly requesting same, after contract award. The City cannot protect
proprietary data submitted in vendor proposals unless provided for under the open records law and
clearty marked as proprietary by the Proposer. In the event the Proposer deems certain information
to be exempt from the disclosure requirements, the Proposal must specify what content is
considered exempt and cite the applicable provision of the law to support that assessment. In the
event such information is requested under the open records law, the Proposer’s assessment will be
examined by the City Attorney who will make a determination. The decision to withhold or release
the information will be at the City Attorney’s sole discretion.

Correction or withdrawal of proposals is permitted in accordance with instructions contained within
the RFP. No proposal may be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days after the time scheduled
for proposal opening, or as otherwise stated in the RFP.

Late proposals will be rejected and returned unopened.

The RFP will identify the criteria to be considered and evaluated as the basis of award.

19 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

Proposals submitted by Responsible and Responsive Proposers are evaluated by Purchasing Agent
or the designee of the Purchasing Agent based upon the criteria applicable to the RFP. All proposals
(or the most acceptable proposals in the discretion of any committee evaluating proposals) will be
ranked in order of their acceptability to the City, giving consideration to the criteria, Unless
otherwise provided by law, the City has no obligation to award the Contract to the Proposer who
proposes the lowest price.

The City reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities of proposals, to request
clarification of information submitted in any proposal, to further negotiate with a Responsive and
Responsible Proposer who has been selected for Contract award, or to reject any or all proposals
for any reason whatsoever.

The Contract award will be awarded, if award is made, by the City to the Responsive and
Responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined, in the City’s exclusive discretion, to be the
most advantageous to the City, taking into consideration price, qualifications, and other factors as
indicated in the RFP. The RFP will contain the basis on which the award is to be made.

If no Responsive and Responsible proposals are received or all proposals are rejected, the City may
procure such Goods, Capital Assets, Services, and Construction Services by Direct Negotiation as
indicated below in Non-Competitive Procurement of Goods and Services, except as otherwise
provided by law.

D. Request for Qualifications

Requests for Qualifications (RFQ) may be used when it is determined to be in the City’s best
interest to evaluate the experience and qualifications of a Service, Construction Service or
Professional Service provider, without regard to price or prior to considering price.

The procedure for soliciting, opening and evaluating statements of qualifications shall be the same
as described herein for competitive sealed proposals. Such service providers whose qualifications
meet the criteria established in the RFQ, at the sole discretion of the City, may be considered for
Contract award by participation in the completion price negotiation. The City shall attempt to
negotiate a fee with the highest ranked firm. If no agreement is reached, the City shall begin
negotiations with the next highest ranked firm. Negotiations will proceed in this manner until an
agreement is reached. Alternatively, the Purchasing Agent or designee may, by Direct Negotiation,
finalize terms with service providers who are selected for award based on qualifications. The City
reserves the right to reject any or all responses for any reason. Clarification of information may be
requested by the City.

E. Invitation to Negotiate

An Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) may be used when the City determines it is in its best interest to
commence negotiation of price and other factors prior to recommendation of award, and it is
approved by the City Manager. An ITN may be used for Goods, Capital Assets, Services,
Construction Services or Professional Services when the scope of work is complex or difficult to
define, if strict comparison of Goods, Capital Asscts, Services, Construction Services or
Professional Services required may be difficult because components are likely to vary among
Proposers, ot in any situation in which it is in the City’s best interest to negotiate prior to
recommendation of award to obtain the product that best meets the City’s needs, price and other
factors being considered,

20 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

The procedure for soliciting and opening initial responses to an ITN shall be the same as described
herein for competitive, sealed proposals.

The ITN will identify the criteria to be considered during the evaluation of proposais.

All Responsive and Responsible proposals submitted are evaluated based upon the criteria
applicable to the ITN, Clarification of information submitted in the proposal may be requested.
The City reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities of proposals, to request
additional information from any Proposer, or to reject any or alf responses for any reason
whatsoever.

The City may, at its sole discretion, shortlist firms that are deemed to best meet the City’s
requirements, taking into consideration all criteria listed in the ITN, including price. The City may,
at its sole discretion, ask for formal presentations from all of the Responsive and Responsible
Proposers, or only from those firms that are Short-listed, if Short-listing is determined to be in the
best interest of the City. Negotiations will be conducted and may take place in person or via
telephonic with all of the Proposers or, if Short-listing occurs, with all of the Short-listed Proposers.
Proposers that participate in the negotiations may be given an opportunity to submit their best and
final offers.

The Contract Award will be awarded, if an award is made, by the City to the Responsive and
Responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to the City, taking
into consideration price and other factors as indicated in the ITN. The City has no obligation to
award the Contract to the Proposer that submits the lowest price; though justification should be
documented.

F. Multi-step Solicitation

The City may initiate one of the multi-step solicitation processes described below when: (a) in the
City’s discretion, it is impractical to prepare an adequate or complete description of the Goods,
Capital Assets, Services or Construction Services desired (due to insufficient data, uncertain
requirements, unfamiliar market options, etc.), (b) the City desires to identify a field of qualified
Bidders, Proposers, Goods or Services, out of a broader field of Bidders, Proposers, Goods or
Services, or (¢) the City believes a multi-step process would best serve its purposes.

1. Consecutive Multi-Step Process:

a) The City may request unpriced proposals or statements of qualifications to be evaluated
based on the criteria in the RFP or the RFQ for purposes of identifying one or more
desirable or acceptable Goods, Capital Assets, Services, or Construction Services or
for purposes of identifying a field of at least three (if possible and available) qualified
or most qualified Bidders or Proposers., The City may request demonstrations,
samples, or may conduct interviews with Proposers to aid in the identification of
desirable or acceptable Goods, Services, or Professional Services or in the
identification of qualified or most qualified Bidders or Proposers. In the event the City
requests demonstrations or samples, the City is not required to seek or permit
demonstrations or samples of Goods or Services deemed by the City to be less desirable
or acceptable than other Goods or Services for which proposals or statements of
qualifications were received. In the event the City conducts interviews with Proposers,

21 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



- Purchasing Policy

b)

the City is not required to interview any Proposer deemed by the City to be unqualified
or less qualified than other Proposers.

After identifying a field of most qualified Bidders or Proposers with the capability of
providing the desirable or acceptable Goods, Services, or Professional Services, the
City may either follow a Competitive Award solicitation process among the field of
Vendors identified as having the capability to meet the City’s requirements for the
procurement or by direct negotiation as indicated below in Non-Competitive
Procurement of Goods and Services.

2. Simultaneous Multi-Step Process:

a)

b)

The City may request that priced proposals be submitted in two separate envelopes,
with pricing information contained in one envelope and all other requested information
contained in the other envelope. In such case, proposals will be evaluated in
accordance with the requirements set forth in the RFP, initially without regard to price
and without opening the envelope containing pricing information, Based on such
evaluation, the City will establish a field of at least three (if possible and available)
qualified or most qualified Proposers. The City may conduct interviews with
Proposers to aid in the identification of qualified or most qualified Proposers. In the
event the City conducts interviews with Proposers, the City is not required to interview
any Proposers deemed by the City to be unqualified or less qualified than other
Proposets.

After establishing a field of qualified or most qualified Proposers, the City will open
the pricing envelopes of only the qualified or most qualified Proposers, and evaluate
such pricing information in the manner described in the RFP for purposes of
recommending/making an award {e.g. most advantageous proposal, price and other
factors considered or low price submitted by qualified Proposers). In the absence of
specific instructions to the contrary in the RFP, pricing information will be evaluated
together with all other information required by the RFP for purposes of selecting
among the qualified field of Proposers the most advantageous proposal, price and other
factors considered.

3. Multi-Step Process to Award Continuing Purchasing Contracts

a)

b)

When it is in the best interest of the City to have pre-qualified, Continuing Purchasing
Contracts because of the need to Provide quick-response, repetitive Services or a range
of Services or Professional Services within a specific field of expertise, the City may
use either a Consecutive or a Simultaneous Multi-Step Procurement Process to identify
one or more Continuing Contractors. The purpose is to identify one or more Pre-
Qualified and Approved Contractors that demonstrate the ability to perform a
particular type of Service during a specified Contract period.

Contract award - The multi-step solicitation shall specify the general types of Services
required, the selection process to be used, and the selection criteria for award of the
Pre-Qualified and Approved Contract(s).

22 FINANCITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

VIIIL.

c) Award of a specific scope of work to a Pre-Qualified and Approved Contractor -
During the term of the Continuing Contract(s), specific scopes of work may be
developed and awarded to Pre-Qualified and Approved Contractor(s), by Amendment
to such Continuing Contract(s), which shall be subject to approval by City Manager or
City Council as a new contract, provided that the specific scope of work is consistent
with the general types of Services upon which award of the Contimiing Contract(s)
was made.

d)

When there is more than one Pre-Qualified and Approved Contractor available to
perform the specific scope of work defined, the process for award of the work is set
forth below:

ii.

iii.

Work may be rotated during the Contract period between the Pre-Qualified
and Approved Contractor(s) that were selected to perform the general type of
Services required in the reasonable discretion of the director of the User
department; or,

Award may be made to the Pre-Qualified and Approved Contractor that is
deemed, based on its original proposal, to be most advantageous to the City
for the specific scope of work required, price and other factors being
considered and without regard to rotation among selected contractors; or,

Quotations, Bids or proposals may be requested from the Pre-Qualified and
Approved Contractor(s) that were selected to perform the general type of
Services or Professional Services required. The City may select the Contractor
whose quotation, bid, or proposal is deemed to be most advantageous to the
City to perform the specific scope of work required.

Online Reverse Auction

The City reserves the right to utilize this procurement method when advantageous. The process
will be specified in the Solicitation Documents.

Performance Guarantee

A Bid/ Proposal Bond or Performance Bond may be required for any solicitation.

Approval of Awards and Recommendations

Prior to the consummation of the purchase by the City of Goods, Services, or Professional Services,
such purchase shall be approved by a person having approval authority over such purchase.

Forms

The Purchasing Agent shall provide and update all forms to procure Goods, Services, and
Professional Services, as needed.

Non-Competitive Procurements

23 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

The provisions of this policy section shall apply to the procurement of Goods, Capital Assets, Services,
Construction Services or Professional Services, when competitive procurement is not practical, feasible,
possible or desirable. Notwithstanding any other provision, any Contract or subcontract entered into by the
City with any Person for the construction, reconstruction, or maintenance of all or part of a public road in
the City, including but not limited to a Contract or subcontract for the purchase of materials, for the hiring
of labor, for professional services, or for other things or services incident to such work, shall be entered
into in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 32-4-114.

A,

D.

Sole Source Procurement

The City may acquire Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction Services or Professional
Services pursuant to a Sole Source Procurement. Sole Source Procurement is available when
Goods, Services, or Professional Services are limited to one source, or when they must be obtained
from a specific manufacturers' dealer and valid competition among dealers does not exist. The
User must provide the justification for the Sole Source Procurement to the Purchasing Agent after
approved by the City Manager or Council.

Single Source Procurement

The City may acquire Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction and Professional Services
pursuant to a Single Source Procurement. A Single Source Procurement is a procurement made
from one Person among others in a competitive market place which, for justifiable reasons, is found
to be most advantageous for the purpose of fulfilling the given purchasing need. The User must
provide the justification for the Single Source Procurement to the Purchasing Agent after approval
by the City Manager or City Council. The Purchasing Agent may elect to purchase particular brand
name Goods or Services when the (Goods or Services comprise a major brand system, program or
service previously selected by the City and due to operational effectiveness, future enhancements
or additions, or maintenance or storage of spare parts precludes the mixing of brands, manufacture,
etc.

Direct Negotiation

Following the completion of a Competitive Award solicitation process above that fails to produce
aresponsible or responsive Bidder or Proposer, fails to produce a qualified respondent, or for which
all submissions were rejected for any reason, the City may procure the Goods, Capital Assets,
Services, Construction Services or Professional Services that were the subject of such failed
solicitation by Direct Negotiation with any provider of such Goods or Services when issuing a
revised solicitation is not recommended by the City Manager with concurrence from legal counsel.

Direct Negotiation will be completed by the Purchasing Agent, assisted as needed by the User and
legal counsel.

Emergency Procurement

The City may acquire Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction Services or Professional
Services by directly negotiating an award in the event of an Emergency. The City Manager shall
make the determination when an Emergency exists. Such emergency procurements shall be made
with as much competition as is practicable under the circumstances.

24 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

A written basis for declaring the Emergency and for the selection of the particular Person for the
provision of Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction Services or Professional Services shall
be included in the Contract file. As soon as practicable, a record of each Emergency procurement
shall be made and shall set forth the contractor’s name, the amount and type of the Contract, a
listing of the item procured under the Contract, and the identification number of the Contract file.

If an Emergency situation should arise after office hours which requires immediate action on the
part of the agency involved for the protection of the best interest of the City or if a like situation
arises on a weekend or holiday and when it is not possible or convenient to reach the City Manager
or Purchasing Agent, any purchase necessary shall be made by the official in charge of such
department or agency, and such purchase reported to the Purchasing Agent within 24 hours.

E. Costs Under the Competitive Threshold

The Purchasing Agent with the consent of the City Manager, where applicable, may acquire Goods,
Capital Assets, Construction Services and Professional Services appropriated by the City Council
in the City budget or otherwise by Direct Negotiation or by some other non-competitive method,
when the dollar value of the purchase does not exceed $25,000.00 and a properly executed and
authorized Requisition is received. Under this non-competitive method, the Purchasing Agent shall
attempt to obtain the Goods, Capital Assets, Services, Construction or Professional Services most
advantageous to the City, price and other factors considered. For Goods and Services under the
competitive threshold but over $5,000.00, the Purchasing Agent or User shall obtain, where
possible, at least three quotes using the IWQ method as outlined in Section VII (A).

The User may acquire by Requisition Goods, Services, Construction Services and Professional
Services appropriated by the City Council in the City budget or otherwise by Direct Negotiation or
by some other non-competitive method, when the dollar value of the purchase does not exceed
$5,000.00. Under this non-competitive method, the User shall attempt to obtain the Goods, Capital
Assets, Services, Construction or Professional Services most advantageous to the City, price and
other factors considered.

F. Direct Negotiation and Qther Public Entities and Co-ops

The City may acquire Goods, Capital Assets and Services by Direct Negotiation or other method
involving limited or no competition from a Supplier having a requirements Contract/Annual
Agreement with any public entity (e.g., federal, state, county, city, authority, school board, Buying
Cooperative, etc.) for Goods, Capital Assets or Services described in such contract and at prices or
discounts no less favorable than any set forth in such Contracts.

Use of State/Co-Op Contracts: The Purchasing Agent may, independent of the requirements of bid
process of this article, procure supplies, services or construction items through the Contract
established through competitive means by the purchasing division of the State of Georgia, national
Co-Ops (i.e.-U.S. Communities), and collaborative purchasing agreements with other local
governments when deemed to be in the best interest of the City.

G. Real Estate Acquisition

1. Compliance with Applicable Regulations

25 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

All real estate acquisition activities shall conform to applicable federal, state (e.g. O.C.G.A §
36-80-18 and O.C.G.A § 36-60-13) and local laws and regulations and shall be subject to the
provisions of the City Code of Ethics,

2. Confidentiality

The City Council and City staff shall maintain the confidentiality of potential and on-going real
estate acquisitions and related information subject to the provisions of the Open Meetings and
Open Records Acts.

3. Formal Approval

All real estate transactions shall be formally approved by the City Council in a public meeting
prior to the City entering a sales contract. This shall not prohibit or interfere with the City
Council’s ability to discuss same and negotiate terms in Executive Session subject to the
requirements of the Open Meeting and Open Records Acts.

4. Appraisals

For any piece of real estate, for which a sales contract has been signed, the City will conduct
at least one appraisal by an independent third-party who holds the Member of the Appraisal
Institute (MAI) membership designation.

5. Land Acquisition Procurement Process

a. City staff will investigate and identify properties for purchase that generally meet an
approved plan or strategy. Furthermore, land purchased with a specific funding source will
only be used for such purposes anticipated and/or authorized. If the City determines that
the land cannot be used for its intended purpose, the City may dispose of the property in a
manner consistent with Georgia law and funds raised through the sale of the property will
be used for future land purchases consistent with the purposes authorized.

b. City staff will work with a Real Estate broker to gather information and make site visits
related to properties under consideration for acquisition.

c. City staff will regularly brief the City Council in Executive Session on properties the city
is considering purchasing to receive direction on “terms and price” from the City Council.

d. City staff will negotiate for “Letters of Intent” with land owners on properties the City
Council has provided staff with direction on “terms and price”.

e. City staff will present the “Letter of Intent” at a public meeting, and at that time request a
Resolution from the City Council authorizing the City Manager to execute a sales contract
to purchase the real estate or to execute an agreement to lease the real estate using the Letter
of Intent as the guidelines for a contract, (PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED in the case of
the purchase of real estate)

f. City staff will make the “Letter of Intent” public on the city website and through a press
refease within 48 hours of the city receiving a fully executed copy of the “Letter of Intent.”

26 - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

g. City staff will publish the executed sales contract or lease on the city website.

h. City staff will conduct due diligence on the real estate to be purchased including at a
mininum but not limited to:

i. Environmental testing (Phase 1 required, Phase II and specialized testing if
watranted);
ii. Production of an ALTA survey of the property,
iii. Production of a MAI appraisal of the property;
iv. Complete title work on the property; and
v. Other reasonable due diligence activities as warranted.

i. City staff will present the findings of the due diligence on the property to be purchased at
a public meeting and request a Resolution from the City Council authorizing the City
Manager to execute any and all closing documents to complete the purchase of the
property. (PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED)

IX. General Procedures and Approval Authorizations

A.

Periodically, the City may be given private/public grants and donations from sources such as
the State and Federal Government and private corporations. These types of solicitations are
more restrictive and may dictate the procurement process and methodology that the City is to
follow for an award. Both federal and state procurement supersedes the purchasing
requirements of the City when buying goods and services using federal or state grant
monies. Departments should refer to the Federal Acquisition Regulations for guidance
on specific federal procurement policies.

All negotiations of agreements for Goods and Services shall be conducted by the Purchasing
Agent. It is recognized that special situations may exist where there is a special need for the
User to be involved in the negotiation process. This must be in conjunction with the Purchasing
Agent at all times. The Purchasing Agent will make final recommendation for agreements.

1t is the responsibility of the Purchasing Agent to secure all necessary approvals of the City
Manager or its designee, and the City Council prior to execution of a Contract or purchase
agreement.

Procurement by leasing, long-term financing, advance payments or deposits or any other
special non-routine method must be approved in advance by the City Council.

In the case of Contracts (other than routine purchase orders), leases or service agreements
(either new or renewals), the approval process is necessary. All such documents will be
forwarded to the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will acquire the necessary approvals
prior to execution of any agreement, Contract or lease through the City Attorney’s office.
When said Contracts, leases or service agreements are up for renewal or expiration the
Purchasing Agent will notify the User for approval to either maintain the Contract or bid a new
Contract. The Purchasing Agent will be responsible for maintaining a file of all current
Contracts, leases or service agreements,

27 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

F. The Purchasing Agent will review the Contract for form, completeness, insurance
considerations, legal implications, and any other items dictated by each situation, The Contract
will then be sent to the User and approved by the Department Director and returned to
Purchasing, The Purchasing Agent will be responsible for having the Contract signed by the
City Manager or their designee after it is signed by the Vendor.

G. Once the Contract is officially executed, the original of the Contract will be filed in the City
Clerk’s office.

H. Once a Contract is awarded by the City, the Contract may be amended, without the necessity
of rebidding such Contract, provided the original Contract amount and the scope of the Contract
is not substantially altered. The Purchasing Agent will review all change orders. Change orders
will be processed to correct the account distribution, quantity, addition/deletion of line items,
change in description and unit price. If a quoted price of the change order is less than
$5,000.00, and 5% of the contract amount, the requisition will be processed pursuant to the
requirements of Section V{A)(12) of this Purchasing Policy. Any requisitions with a change
order of $5,000.00, or 5% of the contract amount, or more shall require City Council approval.
The Purchasing Agent cannot use the change order process to circumvent the Purchasing
Policy. Change orders cannot substantially change the scope of the Contract.

I. The Purchasing Agent and the User share the responsibility to ensure the quality, delivery and
payment of required Goods and Services.

1. Final adjudication of any dispute between the Vendor and User shall be made by the Purchasing
Agent with appropriate input from the User.

K. In most cases, contact with Vendors regarding the Contract will be by the Purchasing Agent
and in conjunction with the User as necessary. All Vendors must coordinate with the
Purchasing Agent before visiting any other City department regarding the Contract. All visits
regarding the Contract must be made with the knowledge of the Purchasing Agent and the
Purchasing Agent has the option of accompanying the visitor. It is recognized that this
restriction on visitation will not necessarily apply to those Vendors with ongoing relationships
such as computer and copy machine service technicians.

L. All returns of Goods or Capital Assets must be initiated by the User through the Purchasing
Agent. Additionally, all Amendments or cancellation to any agreements must be made by the
Purchasing Agent.

M. It shall be the responsibility of the User to ensure that purchased Goods and Capital Assets are
received, inspected and verified as to condition. Since the department head signed the purchase
requisition, that person cannot be the receiver of the Goods and must appoint an individual
within the department to be the receiver of the Goods and Services.

N. Protests

a) Right to protest. Any Person who is aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or
award of a Contract may protest to the City. Protestors shall seek resolution of their
complaints initially with the City Manager. All protests must be submitted in writing
to the City Manager within three (3) business days of award of the contract. The

28 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

b)

4

complaint shall specify the alleged act or omission by the City that provides the basis
for the complaint.

Upon the filing of a written complaint, the City Manager, within three (3) business
days, shall request a response from the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent’s
response will be returned to the City Manager within seven (7) calendar days. Failure
by the Purchasing Agent to file a response may be considered as evidence by the City
Manager of admission of wrong doing on the part of the Purchasing Agent. If
requested by either party, the City Manager, or designee shall have a hearing on the
complaint within fourteen (14) calendar days of filing the complaint to decide the
merits of the claim. The City Manager is empowered to decide to uphold, dismiss or
amend the decision of the Purchasing Agent. The City Council shall approve or reject
the City Manager’s decision. If the party bringing the complaint disagrees with the
conclusions of the City Manager and City Council, the decision may be appealed by
filing a writ of certiorari to the Superior Court of DeKalb County within thirty (30)
days of the decision of the City Council.

Protests concerning invitations. A protest with respect to an IFB, ITN, RFQ, or RFP
shall be submitted in writing prior to the opening of bids or the closing date of
proposals. If not done by that time, the complaint or protest is invalid.

Stay of procurement during protests. In the event of a timely protest under subsection
(b) of this Section, the Purchasing Agent shall not proceed further with the solicitation
or award of the Contract until all administrative remedies have been exhausted or until
the City Manager or City Attorney makes a determination that the award of the
Contract without delay is necessary to protect the interests of City.

0. Credit Cards shall only be issued upon approval of both of the department head and the City
Manager. The Credit limit for each card shall be established by the Director of Finance. All
individuals assigned a Credit Card on behalf of the City shall be personally responsible for its
use and any fraudulent use. The City Manager shall maintain a Procurement Card Procedure
Manual. This manual shall be on file with the City Clerk and made available for all users.

Property Disposal

A. Excess, Surplus, and Obsolete Materials

1t shall be the duty of the User to report all excess, surplus or obsolete materials to the Purchasing
Agent. At this point, the Purchasing Agent will examine alternatives as to the most advantageous
disposition of the items. Items could be refurbished or reconditioned, transferred, traded in on new
equipment or sold by auction or sealed bid, or destroyed. For property over $5,000 in aggregate or
$1,000 individually, the City Council shall approve the request to have the property declared
surplus, For other property, the Purchasing Agent shall present a list to the City Manager for

approval.

1. Transfer or Re-use: The most gainful method for handling an item no longer needed by a
department is to transfer it to another department that has a use for the item.

29 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

XI.

2. Trade-In: Inreplacing obsolete equipment, it may be financially advantageous to trade-in the
old equipment. The invitation for bids on the replacement item should call for bid prices with
or without trade-in and provide that award may be made either way.

3. Sale: Excess, surplus and obsolete items not transferred or traded-in may be consolidated and
offered for sale by auction or by sealed bid method. Auctions can be traditional or
contemporary including online auctions such as www.Govdeals.com or similar websites. The
consolidated list will be submitted to City Council for approval before an auction or sealed bid
is organized. The property offered for sale will be on an “AS IS/WHERE IS” basis. The sale
will be given public notice. Sealed bids will be opened at the time and place announced with
the City, retaining the right to reject any and all.

B. Sale to Employees

To avoid any appearance of impropriety in the disposition program, it will be the City’s policy to
prohibit the direct sale of surplus property to any City Employee, Official or Agent. This policy
does not prohibit any City Employee, Official or Agent from extending an offer at a public auction
or in the form of a sealed bid.

. Allocation of Proceeds

Proceeds from the sale of excess or surplus property will go into the City’s Fund that held the asset.

Projects Using Federal Aid Highway Program (FAHP) Funding

Except as provided in Sections F and G below, the City shall use the competitive negotiation

method for the procurement of engineering and design related services when FAHP funds are involved in
the confract (as specified in 23 U.S.C. 112(b)(2){(A) and 23 CFR 172.5(a}(1)). The solicitation, evaluation,
ranking, selection, and negotiation shall comply with the gualifications-based selection procurement
procedures for architectural and engineering services codified under 40 U.S.C. 1101-1104, commonly
referred to as the Brooks Act,

In accordance with the requirements of the Brooks Act, the following procedures shall apply to the
competitive negotiation procurement method:

A. Solicitation.

The solicitation process shall be by public announcement, public advertisement, or any other
public forum or method that assures qualified in-State and out-of-State consultants are given a
fair opportunity to be considered for award of the contract. Procurement procedures may involve
a single step process with issuance of a request for proposal (RFP) to all interested consultants or
a multiphase process with issuance of a request for statements or [etters of inferest or
qualifications (RFQ) whereby responding consultants are ranked based on qualifications and
request for proposals are then provided to three or more of the most highly qualified consultants.
Minimum qualifications of consultants to perform services under general work categories or areas
of expertise may also be assessed through a prequalification process whereby statements of
qualifications are submitted on an annual basis. Regardless of any process utilized for

30 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

prequalification of consultants or for an initial assessment of a consultant’s qualifications under
an RFQ, a RFP specific to the project, task, or service is required for evaluation of a consultant’s
specific technical approach and qualifications.

B. Request for Proposal (RFP).

The RFP shall provide all information and requirements necessary for interested consultants to
provide a response to the RFP and compete for the solicited services. The REP shall:

a) Provide a clear, accurate, and detailed description of the scope of work, technical
requirements, and qualifications of consultants necessary for the services to be rendered.
The scope of work should detail the purpose and description of the project, services to be
performed, deliverables to be provided, estimated schedule for performance of the work,
and applicable standards, specifications, and policies;

b) Identify the requirements for any discussions that may be conducted with three (3) or
more of the most highly qualified consultants following submission and evaluation of
proposals;

c) Identify evaluation factors including their relative weight of importance in accordance

with Sections C and D,

d) Specify the contract type and method(s) of payment to be utilized;

e) Identify any special provisions or contract requirements associated with the solicited
services;
f) Require that submission of any requested cost proposals or elements of cost be in a

concealed format and separate from technical/qualifications proposals as these shall not
be considered in the evaluation, ranking, and selection phase; and

2) Provide a schedule of key dates for the procurement process and establish a submittal
deadline for responses to the RFP which provides sufficient time for interested
consultants to receive notice, prepare, and submit a proposal, which except in unusual
circumstances shall be not less than 14 days from the date of issuance of the RIP.

C. Evaluation Factors.

Criteria used for evaluation, ranking, and selection of consultants to perform engineering and
design related services must assess the demonstrated competence and qualifications for the type
of professional services solicited. These qualifications-based factors may include, but are not
limited to, technical approach (e.g., project understanding, innovative concepts or alternatives,
quality control procedures), work experience, specialized expertise, professional licensure, staff
capabilities, workload capacity, and past performance.

31 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

Price shall not be used as a factor in the evaluation, ranking, and selection phase. All price or cost
related items which include, but are not limited to, cost proposals, direct salaries/wage rates,
indirect cost rates, and other direct costs are prohibited from being used as evaluation criteria.

In-State or local preference shall not be used as a factor in the evaluation, ranking, and selection
phase. State licensing laws are not preecmpted by this provision and professional licensure within
a jurisdiction may be established as a requirement which attests to the minimum qualifications and
competence of a consultant to perform the solicited services.

The following non-qualifications based evaluation criteria are permitted under the specified
conditions and provided the combined total of these criteria do not exceed a nominal value of ten
percent of the total evaluation criteria to maintain the integrity of a qualifications-based selection:

(a) A local presence may be used as a nominal evaluation factor where appropriate. This
criterion shall not be based on political or jurisdictional boundaries and may be applied on
a project-by-project basis for contracts where a need has been established for a consultant
to provide a local presence, a local presence will add value to the quality and efficiency of
the project, and application of this criteria leaves an appropriate number of qualified
consultants, given the nature and size of the project. If a consultant outside of the locality
area indicates as part of a proposal that it will satisfy the criteria in some manner, such as
establishing a local project office, that commitment shall be considered to have satisfied
the local presence criteria,

(b) The participation of qualified and certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
sub-consultants may be used as a nominal evaluation criterion where appropriate in
accordance with 49 CFR Part 26,

D. BEvaluation, Ranking. and Selection,

a) Consultant proposals shall be evaluated by the City based on the criteria established and
published within the public solicitation.

b) While the contract will be with the prime consultant, proposal evaluations shall consider the
qualifications of the prime consultant and any sub-consultants identified within the proposal with
respect to the scope of work and established criteria.

¢) Following submission and evaluation of proposals, the City shall conduct interviews or other
types of discussions determined three of the most highly qualified consultants to clarify the
technical approach, qualifications, and capabilities provided in response to the RFP. Discussions
may be written, by telephone, video conference, or by oral presentation/interview. Discussions
following proposal submission are not required provided proposals contain sufficient information
for evaluation of technical approach and qualifications to perform the specific project, task, or
service with respect to established criteria.

32 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

d)} From the proposal evaluation and any subsequent discussions which have been conducted, the
City shall rank, in order of preference, at least three consultants determined most highly qualified
to perform the solicited services based on the established and published criteria,

e) Notification must be provided to responding consultants of the final ranking of the three most
highly qualified consultants.

f) The City shall retain acceptable documentation of the solicitation, proposal, evaluation, and
selection of the consultant accordance with the provisions of 49 CFR 18.42.

E. Negotiation.

a) Independent estimate. Prior to receipt or review of the most highly qualified consultant’s cost
proposal, the City shall prepare a detailed independent estimate with an appropriate breakdown of
the work or labor hours, types or classifications of labor required, other direct costs, and
consultant’s fixed fee for the defined scope of work. The independent estimate shall serve as the
basis for negotiation and ensuring the consultant services are obtained at a fair and reasonable cost.

b) If concealed cost proposals were submitted in conjunction with technical/qualifications
proposals, only the cost proposal of the consultant with which negotiations are initiated may be
considered. Concealed cost proposals of consultants with which negotiations are not iitiated
should be returned to the respective consultant due to the confidential nature of this data (as
specified in 23 U.5.C. 112(b)(2)}(E)).

d) The City shall retain documentation of negotiation activities and resources used in the analysis
of costs to establish elements of the contract in accordance with the provisions of 49 CFR 18.42.

F. Small Purchases.

The small purchase method involves procurement of engineering and design related services where an
adequate number of qualified sources are reviewed and the total contract costs do not exceed an established
simplified acquisition threshold. The City may use the State’s small purchase procedures which reflect
applicable State laws and regulations for the procurement of engineering and design related services
provided the total contract costs do not exceed the Federal simplified acquisition threshold (as specified in
48 CFR 2.101)}. When a lower threshold for use of small purchase procedures is established in State law,
regulation, or policy, the lower threshold shall apply to the use of FAHP funds as allowed by Federal law.
The following additional requirements shall apply to the small purchase procurement method:

a) The scope of work, project phases, and contract requirements shall not be broken down into
smaller components merely to permit the use of small purchase procedures.

b) A minimum of three consultants are required to satisfy the adequate number of qualified sources
reviewed.

33 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

¢) Contract costs may be negotiated in accordance with State small purchase procedures; however,
the allow ability of costs shall be determined in accordance with the Federal cost principles.

d) The full amount of any contract modification or amendment that would cause the total contract
amount to exceed the established simplified acquisition threshold would be ineligible for Federal-
aid funding, The FHWA may withdraw all Federal-aid from a contract if it is modified or amended
above the applicable established simplified acquisition threshold,

G. Noncompetitive,

The noncompetitive method involves procurement of engineering and design related services when it is not
feasible to award the contract using competitive negotiation or small purchase procurement methods. The
following requirements shall apply to the noncompetitive procurement method:

a) The City may use their own noncompetitive procedures which reflect applicable State and local
laws and regulations and conform to applicable Federal requirements.

b) The City shall establish a process to determine when noncompetitive procedures will be used
and shall submit justification to, and receive approval from, the FHWA before using this form of
contracting.

¢) Circumstances under which a contract may be awarded by noncompetitive procedures are limited
to the following:

(1) The service is available only from a single source;

(2) There is an emergency which will not permit the time necessary to conduct competitive
negotiations; or

(3) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.

d) Contract costs may be negotiated in accordance with the City noncompetitive procedures;
however, the allow ability of costs shall be determined in accordance with the Federal cost
principles.

H. Additional Procurement Requirements.

(1) Common Grant Rule.

(1) The City must comply with procurement requirements established in State and local laws,
regulations, policies, and procedures which are not addressed by or in conflict with applicable
Federal laws and regulations (as specified in 49 CFR 18.36).

(II.) When State and local procurement laws, regulations, policies, or procedures are in conflict
with applicable Federal laws and regulations, the City must comply with Federal requirements to

34 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

be eligible for Federal-aid reimbursement of the associated costs of the services incurred following
FHW A authorization (as specified in 49 CFR 18.4).

(2) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program.

(1) The City shall give consideration to DBE consultants in the procurement of engineering and
design related service contracts subject to 23 U.S.C. 112(b)(2) in accordance with 49 CFR part 26.
When DBE program participation goals cannot be met through race-neutral measures, additional
DBE participation on engineering and design related services contracts may be achieved in
accordance with the City’s FHWA approved DBE program through either:

(A) Use of an evalunation criterion in the qualifications-based selection of consultants; or
(B) Establishment of a contract participation goal.

(IL.) The use of quotas or exclusive set-asides for DBE consultants is prohibited (as specified in 49
CFR 26.43).

(3) Suspension and Debarmen.

The City must verify suspension and debarment actions and eligibility status of consultants and sub-
consultants prior to entering into an agreement or contract in accordance with 49 CFR 18.35 and 2 CFR

part 180.

XII. Purchasing Card Policy

The Purchasing Agent shall administer the use of city purchasing cards in compliance with the
Purchasing Card Policy which is attached as Exhibit “ _ * hereto and incorporated herein by
reference. The use of all city issued purchasing cards shall be governed by the Purchasing Card
Policy.

35 FINANCTAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

EXHIBIT « »?
PURCHASING CARD POLICY

[attached]

36 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES




Purchasing Policy

Purchasing Card Policy
A, Authority

The Georgia General Assembly established guidelines and penalties into the Official Code of
Georgia Annotated (“0.C.G.A.”) which provides that no municipal corporation shall issue
government purchasing cards or government credit cards to elected officials on or after January 1,
2016, until the governing authority of the municipal corporation, by public vote, has authorized the
issuance and has promulgated specific policies regarding the use of such government purchasing
cards or government credit cards for elected officials of such municipal corporation.

B. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to set requirements and standards for the City of Stonecrest, Georgia
Purchasing Card Program. The policy is not intended to replace current State of Georgia statutes
but is intended to comply with such state laws and establish more efficient guidelines for elected
officials using such purchasing cards. At no time should a city issued purchasing card or credit
card be used for personal purchases regardless of the circumstances. Utilizing the purchasing card
or credit card for personal use or for any item or service not directly related to such official’s public
duty may result in disciplinary action including, but not limited to, felony criminal prosecution,
All purchases ufilizing a government purchasing card or government credit card must be in
accordance with these guidelines and with state law,

C. Scope

This purchasing card policy, as required by state law under O.C.G.A. § 36-80-24(c), applies to the
use of government purchasing cards or government credit cards used by elected officials authorized
to be issued such government purchasing cards or government credit cards. The below list of
officials have been authorized by the governing authority of the City to use such government
purchasing cards or government credit cards and must abide by all of the applicable state laws and
this purchasing card policy.

| Mayor

2 City Councilmembers

3. City Manager

4 City Chief Financial Officer

D. Public Inspection

In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 36-80-24(c) any documents related to purchases using government
purchasing cards or government credit cards incurred by elected officials shall be available for
public inspection,

E. Transaction Limits

37 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

Transaction limits are hereby established to insure compliance with state purchasing laws, maintain
proper budgetary controls, and to minimize excessive use of any individual credit line, Individual
monthly card Hmits cannot exceed those established by the municipal governing authority. The
established single transaction limit for each card must be less than $1,000.00, The established
monthly card limit is based upon the city’s budgetary constraints and is not to exceed $5,000.00
per month. Any exceptions to the standardized limits must have express written approval by the
municipal governing authority and must be added to this policy by amendment or addendum.

F. Purchasing Restrictions
L. Elected Officials may not use a government purchasing card or government credit card for
the following:

a. Any purchases of items for personal use,

b. Cash refunds or advances.

C. Any transaction amount greater than the transaction limits set for by this poficy.

d. Items specifically restricted by this policy, unless a special exemption is granted
by the municipal governing authority.

e. Alcohol or liquor of any kind. Such purchases should not be made with the
purchasing card and may not be reimbursed by the city.

f. Purchases or transactions made with the intent to circumvent the city purchasing
policy, transactional limits, or state law.

2. Elected Officials may use government purchasing cards or government credit cards to

purchase goods and/or services not prohibited by this policy or state law. Such purchases
include, but are not limited to:

a. Purchases of items for official city use which fall within the iransactional
restrictions of this policy,
b. Purchase of lodging, fuel, food, non-alcoholic beverages, or education and training
materials while on city business.
C. Emergency purchases necessary to protect city property.
G. Administrator

The city designates the City Manager as the program administrator of government purchasing cards
or government credit cards. Such administrator shall:

Serve as a liaison between the city’s cardholders and the issuers of such cards.

Maintain the cardholder agreement for all cardholders.

Provide instruction, training, and assistance to cardholders

Maintain account information and secure all cardholder information.

Keep cardholders up-to-date on new or changing information

Upon receipt of information indicating frandulent use or lost/stolen cards immediately
report it to appropriate parties, including the issuer,

N I S i e

38 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



Purchasing Policy

7. Ensure all card accounts are being utilized properly as set forth by state law and this policy.
8. Define the city’s policy and procedures for proper documentation and storage of receipts,
fogs, and approvals required under this policy. '

9. Identify any changes to named persons authorized to use a government purchasing car or

government credit card,
10. Any other duties assigned by the municipal governing authority.

Accounting and Auditing

The Administrator, in an effort to ensure compliance with city policy and state law, will conduct
monthly and/or quarterly reviews and audits of ali government purchasing card or government
credit card transactions. The review is designed to ensure compliance, identify non-compliance
issues and misuse, and through corrective measures assist the city with improving compliance, The
monthly and/or quarterly review and audit should happen within ~ days of the start of a new
month or quarter, After completing the monthly/quarterly audit the Administrator shall notify
cardholders of any violations or questions the Administrator has that occurred within that previous
month/quarter. Depending on the severity of the violation, the Administrator may suspend or
revoke the use of the government purchasing card or government credit card after notification to
the cardholder and to the municipal governing authority, but only after consultation with the city
attorney. Any unresolved violations should be reported to the municipal governing authority and
the city attorney in writing within ~ business days.

Yiolations

The use of a government purchasing card or government credit card may be suspended or revoked
when the Administrator, after consultation with the city attorney, determines that the cardholder
has violated the approved policies or state law regarding the use of the government purchasing card
or government credit card. The government purchasing card or government credit card shall be
revoked whenever a cardholder is removed from office with the city and shall be suspended if such
clected official has been suspended from office,

Agrecment

Before being issued a government purchasing card or government credit card under this policy and
state law, all authorized users of government purchasing cards or government credit cards shall
sign and accept below indicating that such user will use such cards only in accordance with the
policies of the city and with the requirements of state law.

Name Printed Signature

Date:

39 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Quicket Agreement

( ) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE:
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council



e THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Road Analysis Execution

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Wotk Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE:
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council




Digital Laser Pavement Analysis

Pavement Condition Index (PCI)

> Based on scores from 0t1o 100

» Pavement distresses measured:

Patching Distortion

Rippling Bleeding

Raveling Alligator Cracking
Bleeding Block Cracking
Potholes Longitudinal Cracking
Rutting

_u_mno_ _ammq Q:Q_<m_m Qo<_amm a znoacm Qmmmmm:_m_: o* Em m::-m qoon m<.£m3
n-o<_n_=6 qonn_ repair and road maintenance “mmacon_ﬂ =._n= nn::o* _um oEoSma
_ _via visual _:mvmo:o: o:a\oq random road core analysis |



Digital Laser Analysis Provides Condition of City’s Roads

Good
Satisfacto
Fair

Poor
Very Poor
Serious
Failed

G et B _.m<m_o*wm_,<,nmnm~mmo_.<

. Adequate
Degraded

Unsatisfactory




Used by City of Tucker

__PClRange Condition Category

Good
Satisfacto
Fair
Poor
! Very Poor
Tucker's Serious
Overall Failed

Score is

49.1

>amncmﬁm
Degraded
Unsatisfactory

qsm n__m_.a_ _ammn o:n_<m_m vqo<_amm
e “an accurate assessment o
__o* :.m o<m3__ no:n_:_o:o:cn_nm_.m qocn_m



200
109G

. Tuckers. T

Accuracy of Tucker Roads Data

Network P t Status Distribution — 2038

iga
176}

1603
150

140f

43¢

o
= R
8 o

-3
=
7 T

tane-Leagth {mila)
B
)

8

PLY Range
Sections
LM

L %

Area (yd~2)
Ares Yo

U_m_nm_ _mmm_. m:m_<m_m EoSamm m: mnn:..mam mmmmmmamnﬁ 9n z._m nosn_;_os o* _nsm qom%_ _..

o-10
o-10 10-20 206-20 3046 40-50 50-50 &0-70 70-30 80-90 90-100 Total
[ 2 20 36 58 4% & 11 % ? 200
0 2 288 a9 114 9KB.9 w3 14 8.1 7.7 35649
1] 06 8 166 31.7 %7 78 39 23 2.3 100
¢ 151726 206752 £16486.7 P0LE 6773337 209650.3 o7502 620016 555118 28327525
5] 0.8 7.8 6.4 35 P 83 3.8 24 2.2 bl

N e mﬂwﬂa.&_

~along with an estimated cost for repair -




Budget Options for the Tucker Road Network

300

Budget Network Performance {PQI)
Multiple Budgets

93.7

338

30

7o}

60

a7 $1.2 enitlom FY 2018, $2.8 ehilion FY 20192027

& 53.G MiSian Ansually

Average PQI {kL)
3

Jifss.0 potian Ansuatty

40f- e

30

Jo 5.8 e Ansaly
Jaf etien O~ 50 in 10 o

it seotbing

/'3 Unfrited Budget

id]

10

) N
& P @
» b

7 T
.

n & o b &
& o G O

Tz (years)

U.m:m_ _mmm_, m:m_<m_m u_.osn_mm ._.:n_am_. E_ﬁ: _ucn_mmn o_uﬂ.osm *oq _._oE n_:_nx_<



~ City of ._.anwmmmmm:;mnﬂm@ mﬁmﬁm%_ﬁ -

___”_____.___U_m:m_ _mmm_, m:m_<m_m m:m_u_mm no_ow noa_:m _“o n_mﬁm-._s_:m m:::m_ m_om:n_ m:a mmnzmzn_sm_ :
“of road paving for entire SPLOST P,om_.mB with data from digital m:m_<m_m



Summary

_u_m:m_ _.mmmq m:m_<m_m u_d<_n_mm

E _o:ammﬂ o_oco:m ,ﬂoq qomo_ Bm_:ﬁmsmsnm
| nu_m_‘~ S R



Other Cities that have used Digital Laser Analysis for their roads
(DeKalb County cities using analysis to begin paving roads with SPLOST)

1. Brookhaven

2. Dunwoody

3. Johns Creek

4. Peachtree Corners

5. Tucker



e THE CITY OF s

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Citizens Pothole Oversight Committee

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE:
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council



= THE CITY OF

GEORGI A
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Pothole Tracker

( ) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE:
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council




Mayor Jason Lary

Straight Talk

Town Hall
Volume 3

o g,.—_. Stonecrest City Hall
| January 22, 2019

Community, commerce, and culture
working together as a world class city



= THE CITY OF

GEORGIA

A Pothole Palooza







Where do potholes come from?

* High volume of traffic
* Cracks in the roadway
* Water... lots of rain

* Low, freezing temperatures



THE CITY OF ===

GEORGIA

Why are there so many potholes?!?




CE ORI

Why are there so many potholes?

* Poorly maintained roads
(the reason for SPLOST)

e Lots of rainin 2018
(we had more rain than Seattle & _uo:_ms&

» Cooler winter temperatures restricts the
ability to patch potholes



. ...m

i

L
AT
7

3




TommERES= THE CITY OF

Innovative Tools & Techn

olog

. onyourphone..




Rapont poiholen o the iy

Your Narme

af Sromasrent

|

Email Addrezs

E

Submission Bate

7 By wa2ne

Street Name™

Pothole Locadon®

Dirgrds thrir st o




= THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Otrdinance to Amend Chapter 2, Article III of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia
Code of Ordinances for the Purpose of Adding New Depattments

(X) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/14/2019 Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor
PURPOSE:

HISTORY: This item came to Wotk Session 01/14/2019 changes have been made and this
is the first read. '

FACTS AND ISSUES:
OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: First Read




w N

0 00~ Oy 1B

10
11
12
13

14
15
16

17

18

19
20
21
o2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-__ -

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE IlI OF THE CITY OF
STONECREST, GEORGIA CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE PURPOSE OF
ADDING NEW DEPARTMENTS

WHEREAS, Section 2.55 of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia Code of Ordinances authorizes the
establishment of municipal departments; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest desire the addition of two
more municipal departments; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest have determined that the Code
of Ordinances should be amended to make the necessary change.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Stonecrest, Georgia that the City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2 — Administration is amended
as follows:

“Sec. 2-55, - Authorization.

The following departments are established by the council:

(D Administration;

2) Business Development;
(3) Communications;

€ Community and Cultural Affairs;
(5) Community Development;
(6) Economic Development;
(7) Finance;

(8) Information Technology;
C)] Municipal Court;

(1) Public Safety;

(11) Public Works;

(12) Parks and Recreation,

[2728618/1] 1




STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-_ -

34 One or more departments may be combined to form one or more multifunctional
35  departments.”

36
37
38

39
40 SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 201

41 Approved:

42

43

44

45 Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor
46

47

48 As to form:
49

50

51

52 City Attorney
53  Attest:

54

55

56

57  Brenda James, City Clerk

58

[2728618/1] 2




™ THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Professional Setvices for SPLOST Program Management
() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT

() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER

Council Meeting: 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Council Members Geotge Turner & Rob Turnet

PURPOSE:

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




e THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: An Ordinance to Provide for the Creation of the Stonecrest Youth Council and

For Other Purposes
X) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION () OTHER
Council Meeting 01/28/2019
SUBMITTED BY:

PURPOSE: This item was defetred to this council meeting
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council




[ W

W 0~ oy B

10
1
12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

40

41
42

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ' ORDINANCE 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR
THE CREATION OF THE STONECREST YOUTH COUNCIL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest was created by Senate Bill 208, passed in the Georgia
General Assembly during the 2016 Session and subsequently confirmed by
referendum,;

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 208 provided a charter for the City of Stonecrest (the “City Charter”);

WHEREAS, Section 1.03(b)(4'2) of the City Charter grants the City the power to exercise and
enjoy all other powers, functions and rights necessary or desirable to promote the
general welfare of the City and its inhabitants;

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to establish the Stonecrest Youth Council to
provide an opportunity for the youth of the City of Stonecrest to build leadership
skills, learn about civic responsibility, gain a better understanding of municipal
government, prepare for a lifetime of public and community service and acquire a
greater knowledge of and appreciation for the American political system; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to establish a Youth Council Advisory
Committee made up of adult volunteers to assist the City and its staff in creating a
program and curriculum for the aforementioned Stonecrest Youth Council and to
provide oversight and management of the program.

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1: The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby amended by adding a
Division 2 of Article V - Advisory Committees of Chapter 2 — Administration that reads as
follows:

DIVISION 2. - STONECREST YOUTH COUNCIL COMMITTEE.
Sec. 2-145. - Creation.

There is hereby created the City of Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory Committee which
shall be referred to as the Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory Committee.

Seec. 2-146. - Duties and responsibilities.

The Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory Committee shall have the following powers and duties:

1. Prepare and recommend for adoption each year by the city a cutticulum and budget for
the Stonecrest Youth Council program.

[2642700/2] 1




43
44
45

46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
57
68
69
70

71

72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

81

82
83
84

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

2.
3.

Review, evaluate and select youth candidates for participation in the program.

Monitor and provide oversight of the Stonecrest Youth Council program throughout the
year.

Sec. 2-147. - Membership.

1.

Composition. The Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory Committee shall be composed of a
maximum of | | members, one (1) of whom shall be the city manager or his designee
which is an ex-officio, non-voting member of the committee.

Each member shall be nominated by the mayor and approved by the city council.

Term of Office. All members shall serve until the succeeding end of the city’s fiscal year.
Consecutive terms are permissible. Members whose terms expire shall continue to serve
until a replacement is appointment or a consecutive appointment is made.

Vacancies. An appointment to fill any vacancy shall be for the remainder of the
unexpired term of office. A consecutive appointment is permissible.

Removal. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, a member may be removed for
cause by a vote of a majority of the city council in accordance with state law.

Qualifications. In order to be qualified, all members shall either be a resident of the city
or an owner or officer of a business domiciled in the city. Additionally, each member
shall pass a background examination. Should a member move out of the city or no longer
be an owner or an officer of a business domiciled in the city, he/she may remain active
until the mayor and council appoint his/her replacement.

Sec. 2-148. - Compensation.

Committee members shall serve without compensation.

See. 2-149. - Quorum.

A majority of the actual number of Stonecrest Youth Council Advisory Committee members
establishes a quorum. Any action taken requires a majority of affirmative votes of the quorum
present.

Sec. 2-154. - Governance.

1.

The Stonecrest Youth Council Committee shall adopt its rules of procedures, which shall
be substantially similar to the rules of procedures of the city council. :

[2642700/2] 2




85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
%4
95
96
97
98
.99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108

- 109

110
111
112
113
114

115
116
117
118

119
120

121

122
123
124
125
126

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDI_NANCE 2018-

2.

The Stonecrest Youth Council Committee shall set its own meeting schedule and
establish the meeting agendas.

The date and time of each meeting as well as agenda items to be considered ghall be
publicized in the same manver as meetings of mayor and council.

All meetings at which official action is taken shall be open to the public and all records
mainiained by the committee shall be public records, unless expressly excepted by a
provision of the Georgia Open Records Act, 0.C.G.A. Section 50-18-70 et seq.

The committee shall keep minutes of its formal proceedings, showing the vote of each
member upon each question and records of its examinations and other official actions, all
of which shall be filed in the office of the city clerk. Copies of the minutes shall be sent
to the mayor and each member of the city council. The minutes of the meetings shall be
a public record.

The committee shall elect at its first meeting of the calendar year one of its members to
serve as chairperson and one to service as vice chairperson for terms of one (1) year. The
committee shall also elect a secretary to serve as the official record keeper of the
committee,

Members must attend two-thirds (2/3) of meetings in a calendar year. Failure to do so
warrants removal from the committee.

Expenditures of the committee, if any, shall be within the amounts appropriated for the
purpose intended by the mayor and council during the annual budgeting process.

Secs.2-  .—2- .- Reserved.

\
Section 3:

1.

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that all sections,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Mayor and City Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that, to the
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to.be the intention of the
Mayor and City Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.

[2642700/2] 3




127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137

138

. 139

140

141
142

143
144
145

146

147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ' ORDINANCE 2018-

3.

Attest:

In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid,
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,
sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed
by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, senfences, paragraphs and. sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
are hereby expressly repealed. '

The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of The Code of the City
of Stonecrest, Georgia, and the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered to
accomplish such intention,

SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 2018.
Approved:

Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor

As to form:

City Attorney

Brenda James, City Clerk

[2642700/2] 4




i~

----- THE CITY OF ~

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: An Otrdinance to Provide fot the Creation of the Stonecrest Youth Council
Advisory Committee and For Other Putposes

(X) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT

() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION () OTHER

Council Meeting 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY:

PURPOSE: This item was defetred to this council meeting
HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council




00N AW N

BB D B s W W W W W W W R N RN RN RN NN

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, TO PROVIDE FOR
THE CREATION OF THE STONECREST YOUTH COUNCIL AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES

WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest was created by Senate Bill 208, passed in the Georgia
General Assembly during the 2016 Session and subsequently confirmed by
referendum,;

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 208 provided a charter for the City of Stonecrest (the “City Charter™);

WHEREAS, Section 1.03(b)(42) of the City Charter grants the City the power to exercise and
enjoy all other powers, functions and rights necessary or desirable to promote the
general welfare of the City and its inhabitants; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a Youth Council to provide an opportunity
for the youth of the City of Stonecrest to build leadership skills, learn about civic
responsibility, gain a better understanding of municipal government, prepare for a
lifetime of public and community service and acquire a greater knowledge of and
appreciation for the American political system.

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1: The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby amended by adding a
Division 3 of Article V — Advisory Committes of Chapter 2 — Administration that reads as

follows:
DIVISION 3. - STONECREST YOUTH COUNCIL.
Sec. 2-151. — Creation.
There is hereby created a board to be known as the Stonecrest Youth Council.
Sec.2-152. - Duties and responsibilities,
The Stonecrest Youth Council shall have the duty and respénsibiiity to:
1. Evaluate and review problems facing youth in the city.

2. Facilitate neighborhood meetings with youth to discuss problems, needs,
recommendations for community improvements.

3. Meet regularly with the mayor and city council to share ideas and discuss issues,
concerns, and needed improvements.

{2642660/2) 1




91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128

129
130

131

132
133

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALDB ,
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

The youth council shall elect a chaitman to conduct meetings and a vice chairman to
conduct meetings in the absence of the chairman. Elections shall be held at the first regular
mecting after selection by the Stonecrest Youth Council Committee. '

Sec. 2-156. - Quorum

A majority of the actual number of committee members establishes a quorum. Any action
taken requires a majority of affirmative votes of the quorum present.

Sec. 2-157. — Procedure, meetings and records.

The youth council shall adopt its rules of procedures, which shall be substantially similat
to the rules of procedures of the city council.

The youth council shall hold at least one regular meeting per quarter [per month?], with the
option to meet more often as needed or desired. The date and time of each meeting as well as
agenda items to be considered shall be publicized in the same manner as meetings of the mayor
and council.

The youth council shall maintain a record of its activity which shall be a public record and
shall be kept by the office of the city cletk. Copies of the minutes shall be sent to the mayor and
each member of the city council.

All meetings shall be public.

Expenditures of the youth council, if any, shall be within the amounts appropriated for the
purpose intended by the mayor and council during the annual budgeting process.

Sec.2-158. - Absences from meetings.

Youth council members must attend {wo-thirds of meetings in a calendar year. Failure to do
so warrants removal from the committee unless such absence is excused by a majority vote of the
board, with such excuse duty entered upon its minutes. '

Secs.2- . —2- .- Reserved.

Section 3:

1. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that all sections,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Mayor and City Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

[2642660/2] ' 3




134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141

142
143
144
145
146
147
148
148
150
151
152
153
154
155

156
157

158
159
160

161

162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-
2. Tt is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that, to the

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the
Mayor and City Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. ‘

In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid,
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,

- sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed

Attest:

by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
are hereby expressly repealed. '

The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of The Code of the City
of Stonecrest, Georgia, and the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered to
accomplish such intention. ' '

SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 2018.
Approved:

Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor

As to form:

City Attorney

[2642660/2] A




176
177
178

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST

Brenda James, City Clerk

[2642660/2]

ORDINANCE 2018-




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: An Otrdinance Creating the Histotic and Cultural Landmarks Commission

(X) ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT

() DISCUSSIONONLY () RESOLUTION () OTHER

Council Meeting 01/28/2019

SUBMITTED BY:

HISTORY: This item was deferred to this council meeting

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation of Council



w ™

W oo~ G U B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
22

23

24
25

26
27

28
29
30
31

32
33
34

35
36

37
38
39

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB |
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, CREATING THE
HISTORIC AND CULTURAL LANDMARKS COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
STONECREST, GEORGIA

| WHEREAS, Section 1.03(b)(3) of the City Charter provides that the City may regulate and

license the erection and construction of buildings and all other structures; and

WHEREAS, Section 1.03(b)(42) of the of the City Charter grants the City the power to
exercise and enjoy all other powers, functions and rights necessary or desirable to
promote the general welfare of the City and its ifl

WHEREAS, 0.C.G.A. 44-10-20 et seq. is known as the
provides that municipalities electing 40 enac rdinance to provide for the
protection, enhancement, perpetuation, or use of historic properties or historic
districts shall establish or designate a;hfstoric preservation commission; and

1'%13 Historic Preservation Act and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest find:it to be in the best
interest of the City and its citizens. to. provide for the protcction, enhancement,
perpetuation, or use/0f, historic properties” or historic districts "and desire to
establish a historic 1issio

ation commission to be known as the Historic and
Cultural Landmarks Co i

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Cou > f Stoﬁédiﬁest, Georgia, hereby ordain as
fOll()ws» 'f',: ST ’

The Co’c‘ié_j of the C’lty of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby amended by adding a

P,

Section 1:

§ follows:

that the preservatl\-: i of thi Fitage is essential to the promotion of the health, prosperity and
general welfare of the people;

In order to stimula talization of the business districts and historic neighborhoods
and to protect and enhance Tocal historic and aesthetic attractions to tourists and thereby promote
and stimulate business;

In order to enhance the opportunities for federal or state tax benefits under relevant
provisions of federal or state law; and

Tn order to provide for the designation, protection, preservation and rehabilitation of
historic properties and historic districts and to participate in federal or state programs to do the
same;

[2642511/1] 1




40
41
42
A3
44

45

46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83

(4

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB _
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

The Stonecrest city council hereby declares it to be the purpose and intent of this chapter
to establish a uniform procedure for use in providing for the protection, enhancement,
perpetuation and use of places, districts, sites, buildings, structures, objects, landscape features
and works or art having special historical, cultural or aesthetic interest or value, in accordance
with the provisions of this chapter.

Sec. 13.5-2. - Definitions.

This article specifically adopts and incorporates the definitions contained in 0.C.G.A.
Section 44-10-22 of terms used within this chapter as deﬁned in. that code section, including but
not limited to, the following: A

Building means a structure created to shelter any- form of human activity, such as a house,
barn, chutch, hotel, or similar structure. Building'may “refer to- a h1st0rlcaﬂy related complex
such as a courthouse and jail or a house and a b : -

Cemf cate of appropriateriess mean < document approvmg a proposal to make a
‘ rty orofa structure site, or work

chapter.

by the governing autﬁdrity of the City of Stonecrest to
istoric pr(')'p'é,rty" or as a "historic district" and thereaﬁer to

Designation
designate a property or &

arrangement of the exterior of a buzldm  other structure, including, but not limited tu, the kind
or texture of the building material; the type and style of all windows, doors, and signs; and other

appurtenant architectural fixtures, features, details, or elements relative to the foregoing,

. Lxterior envirdumeuﬁilfif‘éatures means all those aspects of the landscape or the
development of a site which afféct the historical character of the property.

Governing authority means the elected mayor and city council of the City of Stonecrest,
Georgia.

Historic district means a geographically definable area, urban or rural, which contains
structures, sites, works of art, or a combination thereof which:
(1) Have special character or special historical or aesthetic interest or Value,
(2) Represent one or more petiods or styles of architecture typical of one or more
eras in the history of the city, county, state, or region; and

[2642511/1] 2




84
85
86

87
88

89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
.103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123

124

125
126

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

(3) Cause such area, by reason of such factors, to constitute a visibly perceptible
section of the city.

Historic property means a structure, site or work of art, including the adjacent area
necessary for the proper appreciation or use thereof, deemed worthy of preservation by reason of
its value to the municipality, county, state, or region for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) It is an outstanding example of a structure representative of its era;

(2) It is one of the few remaining examples of a past architectural style;

(3) It is a place or structure associated with an event or person of historic or
cultural significance to the city, county, state;or region; or

(4) It is a site of natural or aesthetic interes is continuing to contribute to the
cultural or historical development and ntage of the city, county, state, or
region.

G t\the exterior architectural
of art within a historic
ude exterior paint or

Material change in appearance means a change that Wlll a
features of a historic property or of any building,-structute, site or w
district, and may include any one or more of the- followmg but shall not ;
paint color alterations: : .

(1) A reconstruction=or alteration of the s1ze, shape, or facade of a historic
property, including telocation of - any doors or windows or removal or
altemtion of any chlt tuTal feahues detaﬂs or elements;

4) A ehange in the 100&’[10,\ visibie from the public right-of-way
on any h1st0r1c property, -

tation or removal of any building or other
”storlc district, 1nclud1ng walls, fences, steps,
' except exterior paint

Sec. 13.5-3. — Historic and Cultural Landmarks Commission — Creation and appointment.

There is hereby created a commission whose title shall be the “Historic and Cultural
Landmarks Commission of the City of Stonecrest”.

The commission shall be part of the planning functions of the city,

The commission shall consist of six (6) members, each of whom shall serve a maximum
of two (2) consecutive three-year terms. All members shall be residents of the city and shall be

[2642511/1] 3




127
128
129
130

131
132
133
134
135

136
137
138

139
140
141

142

143
144

145

146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158

159 -

160
161
162
163

164

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

persons who have demonstrated special interest, experience or education in the preservation of
historic resources, history or architecture. At least a majority of the members shall be licensed
architects, landscape architects or interior designers or professionals in the fields of history,
architectural history, planning or archaeology.

Commission members-shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to confirmation by the
city council. Should a member be unable to complete a term of office, the governing authority
shall fill the vacancy for, the remainder of the unexpired term in the same manner as making

initial appointments. An individual appointed to serve the remainder of an unexpired term shall
T, .

be eligible to be reappointed for an additional consecutive three-year term.

shall be determined by lottery as

In order to achieve staggered terms, initial appoint |
r two (2) years; and three (3)

follows: two (2) members for one (1) year; two (2),
members for (3) years. o

Members shall serve until their successors ate appointed and-quialified. Members of the

~ commission shall serve without compensation but may be reimbursed-for, reasonable expenses

incurred. : =

of all i)ropérty within the City of Stonecrest
on as historic property;

(1) Prepare and maintain an in
having the potential for desig
2) Recommend to “the - governi uthority specific places, districts, sites,
ildings, stritetuires or works ofatt to be designated by ordinance as historic
ies or historic distriets which ordinance shall be in accordance with the
f this chapter and O.C.G.A. Section 44-10-26;
lications . for certificates of appropriateness, and grant or deny
nce with the provisions of this chapter and 0.C.G.A. Section

the governing authority that the designation of any place,

uilding, structure, object or work of art as a historic property or

district be revoked or removed;

(5) Restore ‘of preserve any historic properties acquired by the City of Stonccrest,
with the approval of the governing authority;

(6) Recommend to the governing authority the acquisition by the City of
Stonecrest of conservation easements in accordance with the provisions of
state law; :

(7) Conduct educational programs on historic properties located within the
boundary of the city and on general historic preservation topics;

[2642511/1] 4




165
166
167
168
i65
170
171
172
173
174
175
176

- 177

178
179
180

i81
182
183

184
185

186
187
138
189
190

191
192

193
194

- 195

196
187

198
199
200

201
202
203

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB ‘
CITY OF STONECREST : ORDINANCE 2018-

(8) Make such 1nvest1gat10ns and studies of matters relating to historic
preservation as the governing authority or the commission itself may, from
time to time, deem necessary or appropriate;

(9) Seek out local, state, federal and private funds for historic preservation and
make recommendations to the governing authority concerning the most
appropriate uses of any funds acquired;

(10)  Consult with historic preservation experts in the Division of Historic
Preservation of the Department of Natural Resources or its successor and the
Georgia Trust for Historic Preservation, Inc.;.

(11}  Submit to the Division of Historic Pteservation of the Department of
Natural Resources or its successor a list. of historic properties and historic
districts pursuant to this chapter and ©.C,G.A., Section 44-10-26.

Sec. 13.5-5. — Same — Meetings and quorum

A quorum shall consist of a majority of thesmembers.

The commission shall meet at least monthly Ut “chair determinés that insufficient
business warrants holding a meetmg, i Wthh case t

month.

Commission membeis
s0 warrants removal from ) ly.

10, Whlch shaH only be effective fter subﬁnttal qnd if approved by the 01ty councﬂ

The commission shall prov1de forthe time and place of its regular meetings and a method for
calling of spemal meetings.

The date and time of each meetlng as well as agenda items to be considered shall be
pub1101zed in the same. manner as meetmgs of the mayor and council.

Annually, at its ﬁrst meetmg of the calendar year, the members shall elect one of its members
to serve as chairperson and one member to serve as vice chairperson. Additionally, the members
shall also appoint a secretary to serve as the official record keeper.

All meetings of the commission shall be open to the public, and all records maintained by the
commission shall be public records unless expressly exempted by a prov1s10n of the Georgia
Open Records Act, O.C.G.A. 50-18-70 et seq.

The commission shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of each member
upon each question, and records of its examinations and other official actions, all of which shall
be filed in the office of the city clerk. Copies of the minutes shall be sent to the mayor and each

[2642511/1] 5




STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB -
CITY.OF STONECREST ' ORDINANCE 2018-

204  city councilmember. The minutes of the meetings shall be a public record. This section shall not
205  be construed as prohibiting closed sessions when permitted by the state open meetings and open
206  records acts.

207  Sec. 13.5-7. - Conflict of Interest.

208 No commission member shall participate in the discussion on or vote on any matter in
209  which he or she may have a conflict of interest as defined within the City Charter or Code or
210  Official Code of Georgia Annotated. '

211 Sec. 13.5-8. - Designations.

, or works of art or historic
> governing authority, which

12 Designation of places, districts, sites buildings;
213  propetties or historic districts shall be by o1dmance adopted by
214  shall be subject to the following requirements: .~

215 (1) Smdzes The govermng authonty, a hlstorlcal society, nelgh 01h00d orgamzatlon
216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223 (2) O

224 demgnatmn fo the_.governmg authority report shall contam as a minimum:

225 . A hysiceil] ;_cl,e_scriptiipn of the “property(ies) and/or district(s) proposed for
226 i ;T T N ‘

227 i f the histc__)rical, cuﬂﬁf&l, architectural and/or aesthetic significance of
228 L '

229 istrict boundaries and classification (e.g. historic, non-historic,
230 . significant categories) of individual properties therein, or
231 of individual historic properties; and

232 graphs

233 y e used to educate the community and to provide a permanent
-234 record of the designation. '

235 (3)  Criteria. The commission shall consider, but not be limited to, the following criteria
236 when considering recommendations to the govermng authority for designation of
237 historic properties or districts,

238 a.  Historic properties whether they:

239 1. Are an outstanding example of a structure representative of its era;

[2642511/1] 6



240

241
242

243
244
245

246
247

248
249

250
251

252
253
254
255
256
257

258
259

260
261
262

263
264
265
266

267

268
269
270
271

272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ' ORDINANCE 2018-

4)

©)

b : Descnbe each pzoperty to be demgna’[

(6)

2. Are one of the few remaining examples of a past architectural style;

3. Are a place -or structure associated with an event or person of historic or
cultural significance to the city, county, state or region; or

4,  Are a site of natural or aesthetic interest that is continuing to contribute to the
cultural or historical development and heritage of the city, county, state or
region.

b. Historic disiricts whether they:

1. Have special character or special historic hetic interest or value;

2, Represant one or more periods or styles-of architecture typical of one or more

eras in the history of the city, county 8

3. Cause such area, by reason of such actors
section of the city. s

Notice to state. No less than thirty (3 0) ﬁays prior to makmg a;
ordinance demgnatmg a property or d1s‘crict as h1st01 ic and at lea

Ordinance. Any ordinance d651 ating any property as historic property or any district
as a historic dlstnct shall o
_shown on the official zoning map

s a public record to provide notice of such
requirements specified by this section;

a. Reqmre that the deSLgnated prop
of the city and be kept by the ci
) demgnatlon in addltlon to other notig;

; set forth the name or names of the owner

~ or owners. of the property and requne that a certificate of appropriateness be
'+ obtained from the commission prior to any material change in appearance of the
designated property; and

C. Include a descnptzon of the boundaries of such district, list each property located
therein, set forth the name or names of the owner or owners of each such property
and require that 4 certificate of appropriateness be obtained from the commission
prior to any:. materlal change in appearance of any structure, site or work ,@f\art
located within' the designated historic district. _‘\

Notice and hearing. The commission and the governing authority shall hold a public
hearing on any proposed ordinance for the designation of any historic district or
property. Notice of the heaving shall be published in at least three (3) issues of the
principal newspaper of local circulation; and written notice of the hearing shall be
mailed to all owners and occupants of such propetties. All such notices shall be
published or mailed not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the
date set for the public hearing. A notice mailed to the last known owner of the property
shown on the city tax digest and a notice mailed to the address of the property on which

[2642511/1] 7




280
281

282
283
284
285
286

287
288
289
290
291

292
293
294
295
296

297
298
299
300

301
302
303

304

305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313

314
315

316
317
318

319

' STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

Y

(8) :35- [

- 'féﬁthority, the 'oWnels ar

€)

(10)

_ commission shall have the power to freeze the status of the involved property.

" case of a historic property, one (1) sigr

residences or businesses are located to the attention of the occupant shall constitute
legal notification to the owner and occupant under this chapter.

This published notice shall state the time, date, place and purpose of the heating. This
published notice shall also include the location or boundaries of the property or
properties, the existing zoning classification and historic designation, if any, and a
statement that the property could be proposed for historic designation during the
proposal process.

The commission shall give notification of the proposal by mail to all abutting property
owners as shown by DeKalb County tax records. Stich notification shall be mailed not
less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) daYS pidor to the date set for the public
hearing and shall include a description of the apphcatmn and the date, time and place of
the public hearing. :

: s1gn or signs glvmg notification of the date,
nsider the proposed historic designation. In the
hall be placed on the property visible from a
11 be placed at each point where

The commission shall cause to be ereg
time and place of a public hearing

nmendation to affirm, modify or
be made by the commission

adopt the ordinanc:
deems necessaly\ 1

“gccupants of each designated historic property, and the
owners and occupants of tructure, site or work of art located within a designated
hlstorlc district, shall-be glven tten notification of such designation by the governing
authorlty The notice shall appnse owners and occupants of the necessity of obtaining a
certificate of apploprlateness prior to undertaking any material change in appearance of
the historic property des1gnated or within the historic district designated. A notice sent
via the United Statés mail to the last known owner of the property shown on the City
tax digest and a notl,ce sent via United States Mail shall constitute legal notification to
the owner and occupant under this ordinance.

Notiﬁcarioﬁ of other agencies regarding designation. The commission shall notify all
necessary agencies with the city of the ordinance for designation.

Moratorium on applications for alteration or demotion while ordinance for
designation is pending. If an ordinance for designation is being considered, the

[2642511/1] 8




320

321
322
323
324
325
326

327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339

340
341
342
343
344
345
346

347
348

349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356

357
358
359
360
361

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

See. 13.

5-9. - Certification of appropriateness.

After the designation by ordinance of a historic property or of a historic district, no material

change

in the appearance of such historic property, or of a structure, site or work of art within

such historic district shall be made or be permitted to be made by the owner or occupant thereof
unless and until an apphcatlon for a certificate of appropriateness has been submitted and
approved by the commission. A building permit shall not be issued without a certificate of
appropriateness.

Q)

4)

ners of historic property or of
gents, must make application for
g to procedures promulgated by
rtment of Transportation and

Application for certificate of appropriateness. O
property in a historic district, or their duly authorized
a certificate of appropriateness on forms and ag
the commission for such purpose. The Geo:
contractors performmg work funded by the r g1a Dﬁaﬂmen’c of Transportation are
exempt from provisions of this chapter.- Local goverhni“ nts are also exempt from
obtaining certificates of appropnateness but shall notify th ission at least forty-
five (45) days prior to beginning or undertakmg any work that'would otherwise require
a certificate of appropriateness, so as to allow fhe commissio opportunity to
comment. All applications for certificates’ of appropnateness shall be compamed by
drawings, photographs, p d documentation as required by the commission.
Notarized authorization of ‘perty owner shali be required if the applicant is not
the owner of record. S

(2)  Public hearings on application ficates of appropr:areness notices and
right to be hedrd.. Tﬁe commission‘sh o xearmg at which each proposed
cettificate of approprlateness is dis otice of-the’ hearing shall be published in
the principal ‘newspaper of local circulation in the ‘city and written notice of the
hearing shall be mailed by the commission,to all owners and occupants of the subject
e written and published noti 5 hall be provided in the same manner and
otices are prov1ded before

-__bhc Hearing for Rezoning.

hall give the ploperty owner and/or applicant an opportunity
lﬁcate of approprlateness hearing.

demgn arrang ment;dexture and materials of the architectural features involved and the
1elat10nsh1p thy the exterior architectural style; and pertinent features of other
properties in the immediate neighborhood. When considering applications for existing
buildings, the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Historic Preservation Projects,
including the Standards for Rehabilitation, shall be used as a guideline.

Interior changes. In its review of applications for certificates of appropriateness, the
commission shall not consider interior arrangements or uses having no effect on exterior
architectural features. The commission may delegate the responsibility for determining
the extent of interior change and its effect on the exterior appearance to the planning
director or his designee.

[2642511/1] )




362
363

364
365
366
367

368
369
370
371
372
373

374

375
376
377
378

379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395

396
397
398
389

400
401
402
403
404

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

()

(6)

7

(8)

®)

(10)

Demolition. A decision may be made by the commission approving or denying a
certificate of appropriateness for the demolition of buildings, structures, sites or objects,

Ordinary maintenance and repair. Ordinary maintenance or repair of any exterior
architectural feature in or on a historic property, that does not involve a material change
in design, material, or outer appearance thereof, is excluded from review and does not
require a certificate of appropriateness.

Approval, The commission shall approve the application and issue a certificate of
appropriateness if it finds that the proposed material change(s) in appearance would not
have a substantial adverse effect on the aesthetic, hiStotic or architectural significance
and value of the historic property or the historic di . The commission may approve
the apphcatlon as proposed, approve it with m ons, or deny the application. The
commission shall approve, approve with nio; ificat ;1\3\01 deny an application for a
certificate of appropriateness within forty- ﬁve (45) days dfter the filing thereof by the
apphca.nt unless an extension is 1equested by the applicant and granted by the
commission. Evidence of approval Sila]l be by certificate of appropriateness issued by
the commission, Failure of the commission to act within said forty=five (45) days shall
constitute approval and a cert1ﬁcate of appropnateneSs shall be issued

Final actton The commi

on's decision, Whethel to accept or I‘GJGC an apphca‘uon

have been met :
congidered in ;

all work shall cease. A ceriificate of appropriateness shall become void unless
construction is commenced within twelve (12) months of the date of the issuance.
Certificates of appropnateness shall be issued for a peuod of eighteen (18) months and
are not renewable

Revised appllcaz‘mns The commission may suggest alternative courses of action if it
denies the application submitted. The applicant may make modifications to the plans
and may resubmit the application at any time after making such modifications as
suggested by the commission.

Prohibition on issuance of development permits. In cases where the application
covers a material change in the appearance of a structure, which would require the
issuance of a permit of any kind, the denial of the application for a certificate of
appropriateness shall be binding upon the city and no permit related to the rejection of
the application for a certificate of appropriateness shall be issued by the city.

[2642511/1] | 10




STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB

CITY OF STONECREST . ORDINANCE 2018-
405 (11)  Official record. The commission shall keep a public record of all applications for
406 certificates of appropriateness and of all the commission's proceedings in connection
407 with applications. Such records shall be maintained .by the planning director. In the
408 everit of an appeal to the governing authority, the official record of the commission's
409 decision shall consist of the application, any accompanying drawings, renderings or
410 photographs, written comments from planning department staff, written comments of
411 any participant at the hearing before the commission and the commission's written
412 decision. Such records shall be available for review in the planning department within
413 ten (10) days of a final decision by the commission on the certificate of appropriateness.
414 (12) “Appeal to the govemmg authority. Any person. advelsely affected by any decision
415 made by the commission relative to the issuance or denial of a certificate of
416 appropriateness (i.e. the apphcant or any owier “of. -adjoining property or owner of
417 property whose property line is within on ;thousand five hundred (1,500) feet of the
418 applicant's property acco1d1ng to the DeKalb County taX’ records) may appeal such
419 decision to the governing authority. The appeal shall be 111n1ted to a review of the record
420 of the proceedings before the commission, The standard of review shall be an abuse of
21 . . discretion. An abuse of discretion exists where the: fecord p1esented to the governing
422 authomty shows that the commission exc ‘limits of its authority or that the
423 commission's decision was not based on factor: t forth in the section 13.5- 9(3) or the
424 ' guldeimes adopted by the ‘commission pursua
425 commission's decision was otherwise aibmary ; capricious. If the governing
426 authority finds no.abuse of discretion, then it ﬁﬁay {fﬁﬂﬂ the  decision of the
427 commission. Tf: ning authority finds that:the commission abused its discretion
428 n it may revelse the comrnission's decision, or it may reverse

429 8i ,_,'s decisiol and remand the apphcatmn to the commission with direction.
430 All appeals mus \

431

432

433 o

434 B _COplBS of the appeal to the'planning department and the city attorney.

435 b. In the written appeal the ppellant must describe how the commission's decision
436 constitutes an abuse’ of discretion. Specifically, the appellant must, citing to the
437 commission's written decision, show at least one (1) of the followmg that the
438 commission exceeded the limits of its authority, ot that the commission's decision
439 was not based on factors set forth in the section 13.5-9(3) or on the guldehnes
440 adopted by the commission pursuant to section 13.5-6, or that the commission's
441 decision was otherwise arbitrary and capricious. ’

442 c. In addition to the appeal form, the appellant may submit a written supplementary
443 explanation in support of the appeal. The supplementary explanation shall be
444 submitted with the appeal. The supplementary explanation may not exceed three (3)
445 pages and must be typewritten and double-spaced using a twelve-point font with a
446 one-inch margin on all four (4) sides. The governing authority will not consider
447 text in excess of the page limit set forth herein.

[2642511/1] 11



448
449
450
451
452
453

454
455
456
457

458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467

468
469

470
471
472

473
474

475

476
477

478

479
480
481
482
483
484

485
486
487

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB '
CITY OF STONECREST - ORDINANCE 2018-

~d.  Any adversely affected person may also submit a wrilten supplementary
explanation that must comply with all of the requirements set forth in section 13.5-~
9(12)c, in support of, or in opposition to the appeal. All written supplementary -
explanations authorized by this subsection must be filed within five (5) days after
the appeal is filed. Such written supplementary explanations must be filed with the
city clerk with copies to the planning director, and the city attorney.

e, The planning department shall submit appeals of the decisions of the historic
commission to the governing authority for consideration at any of the city council’s
regularly scheduled meetings within forty-five (48) days of the issuance of the
decision from the commission.

f.  The agenda item shall set forth the standag
authority in deciding the appeal. The ofﬁ__
together with the appeal and all properly filed writt

support and in opposmon to the appeal wﬂl b

evxew to be used by the governing
rd. of the commission’s decision
upplemental explanations in

oyerning authority's
’ ﬂ_led a statement

om a degision of the governing authority

(13) Appeals fo Supei ior Courr An~ C
certiorari to the Superior Court of DeKalb

shall be made: by a petltlon for writ

vith the- provisions of this chapter, or to prevent any illegal act or
such historic property or district.

The commission g iere such action is authorized by the governing authority and is
reasonably necessary or riate for the preservation of a unique historic property, enter into
negotiations with the owner of properties or of properties within historic districts for the
acquisition by gift,  purchase, exchange or otherwise of ownership of the property or any interest
therein. Final approval and ownership of these properties would be determined by the governing
authority.

Sec. 13.5-11. - Failure to maintain historic property.

Property owners of historic properties or properties within historic districts shall not allow
their buildings to deteriorate by failing to provide ordinary maintenance or repair. The

[2642511/1] . 12




488
489
450
491
492
483
494

495
456
4497
458
499
500

501

502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
‘514

515

516
517
518
519

520
521
522

523
524

525

STATE OIF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB ‘
CITY OF STONECREST ' < ORDINANCE 2018-

commission shall monitor the condition of historic properties and existing buildings, structures,
sites and works of art located in historic districts to determine if they are being allowed to
deteriorate by neglect.

If the commission determines a failure to provide ordinary maintenance and repair, the
commission will notify the owner of the property and set forth the steps which need to be taken
to remedy the situation. The owner of such property shall have thirty (30) days to initiate the
appropriate repairs.

In the event that efforts to correct the condition are not commenced within thirty (30) days,
the owner shall be considered in violation of this chapter hall be subject to fines not to
exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for each day of violation. Alternatively, at the direction
of the governing authority, the commission may per Such maintenance or repair as is
necessary to prevent deterioration by neglect. The ov (
cost of such maintenance and repair performed by the commissio

Sec. 13.5-12. - Exceptions.

chapter would 1esu1t in except1onal plactlcal dlfﬁculty or undue hardship uponiany owner of any
specific property, the commission in ~passing upon apphcatlons shall have power to vary or
modify strict adherence to said provisions or to 1nterplet the meaning of said provisions so as to
relieve such difficulty or hardship; provided, however, that such variance, modification, or
interpretation shall remain in harmony with the general purpose and intent of said provisions so
that the architectural o | integrity or chatacter of the property shall be conserved and
substantlal Justlce do vanatmns the comrmssmn may impose such reasonable and

by a p;giidiiderance of | éiz'idcnce
Sec. 13.5-13. - Application fees.

Each applidati_on for a cé'f_ﬁﬁoate ofiaf)pi'opI'iateness shall be accompanied by a fee in an
amount established by the governing authority, a copy of which will remain on file in the

planning department, to pattially defray the public expense in processing such application. The
fee shall not be required fpr.,aﬁ'application filed by the city.

Sec. 13.5-14. - Penalties.
Any person who does anything prohibited by the chapter as it exists or as it may hereafter be
amended, or who fails to do anything required by this chapter as it now exists or as it may

hereafter be amended, upon conviction of a violation, shall be subject to punishment as provided
by law. Each day this violation exists shall be deemed a separate offense.

Sec. 13.5-15. - Severability.

[2642511/1] - 13




526
527
528

529

530
531
532
533
534

535

536
537

538
539

540
541
542
543

544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551

552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562

563
564

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST , ORDINANCE 2018-

Nothing in the chapter shall be construed as to exempt property owners from complying
with existing city building and zoning codes, nor prevent any property owner form making any

" use of this property not prohibited by other statutes, ordinances or regulations.

Sec. 13.5-16. - Severability.

In the event that any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter shall be
declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall in no manner affect the
other sections, sentences, clauses, or phrases of this chapter, which shall remain in full force and
effect, as if the section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase 80, declared or adjudged invalid or
unconstitutional were not originally a part thereof. L

Sec. 13.5-17. - Repeal of conflicting ordinances.

This chapter is the Historic Preservation Ordinance of the Clty of Stonecrest, and all other
conflicting ordinances or resolutions are hereby rep -

Section 2:

1. Ttis hereby declared to be the mtentlon of the

2. It is hereby ‘declar e intentieh of the Maj'f'e'i‘ and City Council that, to the
greatest extent all each and: every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of thlS O\dl érable ﬁom every other sec‘aon, paragraph sentence

-i;_Mayor and C1ty Couneﬂ
sentence, clause. or phras i
sectlon paragraph sentence cla

¢-or phrase of this Ordinance,

3. In the event that any phrase clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
shall, for any feason’ whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
unenforceable by the: valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or unenforceability shall, to the greatest. extent allowed by law, not render invalid,
unconstitational or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,
sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed
by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
are hereby expressly repealed.

[2642511/1] 14




565

566
567

568
568
570

571

572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2018-

5. The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

6. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of The Code of the City
of Stonecrest, Georgia, and the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered to
accomplish such intention.

SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 2018.

| C_ity Attorney
Attest: o

Brenda James, City Ciéi‘k[ ,

[2642511/1] 15




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Members of the Arabia Mountain Overlay Steering
Committee

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSION ONLY (X) RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE: The members of the Arabia Mountain Overlay Steering Committee were
appointed in February 2018 and this is for the year of 2019.

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




Arabia Mountain Overlay Steering Committee

Appointed February 19, 2018

Mayor Pro Tem George Turner- District 4 Co- Chair

Ms. Mera Cardenas, Executive Director Arabia Mountain Co- Chair
Council Member Diane Adoma, District 5

~ Council Member Jimmy Clanton, District 1

Mr. Michael Harris, City Manager

Ms. Nicole Dozier, Community Development Director

Mr. Kelly Jordan, Arabia Mountain Heritage Area Alliance, inc

Mr. Eric Hubbard, District Outreach Director, Rep. Hank Johnson

Ms. Jetha Wagner, Vice President Avila Development LLC

One Representative from each of the following:

Stonecrest Business Alliance Incorporated
Parks of Stonecrest Community Civic Association
Klondike Area Civic Association

such other civic associations and businesses as may be designated by Council
Member Clanton or Adoma with the concurrence of the Mayor.




Ll
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Members of the Stonecrest Education Committee

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY  (X) RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE: The members of the Stonecrest Education Committee were appointed in
February 2018 and this is for the year of 2019.

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




Education Committee

Appointed February 19, 2018

Dr. Barbara Lee

Vickie Turner




s THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Members of the Stonecrest Finance Committee

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY  (X) RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE: The membets of the Stonecrest Finance Committee were appointed in
February 2018 and this is for the year of 2019.

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




Finance Committee

Appointed February 19, 2018

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble




= THE CITY OF

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Members of the Steeting Committee to Negotiate the
IGA with East Metro DeKalb CID

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY  (X) RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE: The members of the Steering Committee to negotiate the IGA with East
Metro DeKalb CID were appointed in February 2018 and this is for the year of 2019.

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




Steering Committee to negotiate IGA with East Metro DeKalb CID
Appointed February 19, 2018

Council Member Clanton, Chair
Attorney Bernard Knight, Vice-Chair
Stacy Thibodeaux

Edwina Clanton

Matt Hampton

Sabrina Wright




s THE CITY O

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Membets of the SPLOST Citizens Oversight Advisory
Committee '

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY  (X) RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayot

PURPOSE: The members of the SPLOST Citizens Oversight Advisory Committee
appointed in October 2018 and this is for the year of 2019,

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




SPLOST CITIZENS OVERSIGHT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Appointed October 15, 2018

1. Eric Carrington District 2
2. Erika Dixon District

3. Phyllis Douglas District

4. Michelle Emanuel District 4

5. Lemuel Hawkins District 5

6. Shawn Jones District 3

7. Dave Marcus District 5

8. Darrel Taylor District 1

9. Swain Watters District

10. Kerry Williams District

11. Suzanne Frisk District 5
12. Plez Joyner City Manager Designee




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Members of the Stonecrest Film Committee

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSIONONLY  (X) RESOLUTION () OTHER
Work Session: 01/28/2019 Council Meeting: 02/11/2019

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor

PURPOSE: The members of the SPLOST Citizens Oversight Advisory Committee
appointed in December 2018 and this is for the year of 2019,

HISTORY:

FACTS AND ISSUES:

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:




Film Commission

December 17, 2018

Council Member Rob Turner
City Manager or designee
Patreece DeChabert

Verda Watson

Todd Brown

Stacy Thibodeaux

Kenneth Reeves




! P

1l

GEORGIA

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: ‘IMOD 18-0007 (A) & (B)  Chapter 27 and Chapter 7 Modifications

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSION ONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Date Submitted: 01/17/19 Work Session: Council Meeting: 1/28/19

SUBMITTED BY: Nicole C.E. Dozier, Community Development Department Directo

PURPOSE: (A) This is a clean-up modification to “Short Term Vacation Rentalf” Section
4.2.58 providing clarity on the Sq. Ft. per occupant requitement.

(B) 'This is a clean-up modification to the Building Code Section 7 remove 6f
language not applicable to Stonecrest. Note: This item will have to be

forwarded to DCA for approval prior to city adoption

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Planning Commission recommended deferral of item (A) and
approval of item (B) at the Januaty 3, 2019 meeting. Item (A) was recommended for deferral due to
concerns over the Public’s ability to review document because it was posted to the website late.

OPTIONS: Defer back to the Planning Commission, Approve; Deny; or make Alternative
conditions

ATTACHMENTS:
#1  Planning Commission Staff Report




Attachment #1

1/3/2019
Planning Commission Staff Report

TMOD 18-0007 (A) & (B)

Chapter 27 and Chapter 7 Modifications




e THE CITY OF —

STONECHEST

GEORGIA
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2019

Petition Number:

Applicant:

Project Location:

Discussion:

GENERAL INFORMATION
TMOD 18-0007
Stonecrest Community Development Department
City-Wide

This is a modification of Article 27 Short Term Vacation Rental
Ordinance and minor modification to Chapter7 Building Code.



L& T N I

OO =1 O Lh e

11

12
13
14

15
16
17

138
19
20
21

22
23

24
25
26

27
28

29
30

31

32
33

34
35
36

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST : ORDINANCE 2019-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, AMENDING

CHAPTER 27, ARTICLE IV TO CLARIFY EXISTING REGULATIONS ON SQUARE

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

FOOTAGE OF SLEEPING AREAS.

the City of Stonecrest is authorized to exercise the power of zoning Ga. Const.
Art. IX, Section IL, § IV, Ga. Const. Art. IX, Section II, §§ I and IIT, Official Code
of Georgia Annotated (0.C.G.A.) § 36-66-1 et seq., the City’s Charter, the City's
general police powers, and by other powers and authority p1ov1ded by federal,
state and local laws applicable hereto; and

the City of Stonecrest continues to exercise its zoning powers to provide
comprehensive city planning and ensure a safe, healthy, and aesthetically pleasing
community; and

as the City of Stonecrest experiences growth and gains knowledge through the
exercise of these powers, it is necessary to and, amend, and/or remove certain
requirements in the Zoning Ordinance; and

the City of Stonecrest recognizes necessity of implementing regulations which
protect the health, safety and welfare of its citizens as well as tourists in the city -
who choose alternative accommodations, such as Short Term Vacation Rentals.

the Zoning Procedures Law, O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1, et seq., provides statutory
requitements “which must be met by a local government to enact zoning
ordinances and make zoning decisions, including, requiring publication of notice
and public hearing prior to the enactment of zoning ordinances;

the City of Stonecrest has advertised and held public healmgs on
and on the adoption of the amendment to Chapter 27, Article I'V.

this Ordinance seeks to clarify the existing regulations on Short Term Vacation
Rentals to ensure a safe, healthy, and aesthetically pleasing community for the -
citizens and visitors of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia.

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby ordain as

follows:

Section 1:

Section 4.2.58 of The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby

amended to read as follows:

A. No individual renting the property shall stay for longer than 30 consecutive days.

B. The STVR shall not be operated in such a way as to change the residential character of
the neighborhood in which it is located and shall comply with the noise ordinance.

C. In every dwelling of two (2) or more rooms, every room occupied for sleeping purposes
by one (1) occupant shall contain not less than 70 square feet of floor area, and every
room occupied for sleeping purposes by two (2) occupants shall contain at least one

[2740566/1]

1



37
38

39

40
41
42
43

44
45

46
47

48
49
50
51

52
53

54
55
56

57
58
39
60
61
62

63
64

65
66
67
68

69

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

K.

1.

hundred twenty (120) square feet of floor area. Maximum occupancy limits for any
overnight guests must not exceed two guests for every bedroom located in the STVR.

Every Bedroom shall have a window facing directly and opening to the outdoors.

Every bedroom shall have access to not less than one water closet and lavatory without
passing through another bedroom. Every bedroom in an STVR shall have access to not

less than one water closet and lavatory located in the same story as the bedroom or an

adjacent story.

There shall also be provided at least one (1) off-street parking space for each bedroom
used as a part of the STVR.

No signs or advertising are permitted to identify or advertise the existence of the STVR,
beyond those otherwise allowed for the residential property.

All STVR units shall be furnished with a telephone that is connected to a landline or
similar type connection, including a voice over internet protocol, in order that 911
dispatch may be able to readily identify the address and/or location from where the call is
made when dialed.

A diagram depicting two eviction routes shall be posted on or immediately adjacent to
every required egress door.

No individua)l renting a STVR shall use the STVR for a special event, party, or temporary
outdoor event, No owner or operator of a STVR shall permit a STVR to be used for a
special event, patty, or temporary event.

It shall be unlawful to establish, operate, or cause to be operated a STVR in the city
within 500 feet of another STVR, bed and breakfast, boarding house, Home stay bed and
breakfast residence, hotel/motel, hotel/motel extended stay, personal care home, or child
caring instifution. Measurements for this subsection shall be made in a straight line
without regard to intervening structures or objects, between the closest points on the
property lines of the two uses.

Section 2:

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that all sections,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance arc and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Mayor and City Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional. '

[2740566/1] 2



70
71

72

73
74
75
76

7
78
- 79
80
81

82

83
84
85
86
87
83
89
90
91
92
93
- 94
95

96

o7
98
.99
. 100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107

108

109
110
111

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-
2. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that, to the

Attest:

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Otdinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the
Mayor and City Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.

In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid,
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,
sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed
by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith -
are hereby expressly repealed.

The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption,

[The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of The Code of the City
of Stonecrest, Georgia, and the sections of this Ordinance may be.renumbered to
accomplish such intention. ]

SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 2019.
Approved:

Jason Lary, St., Mayor

As to form:

City Attorney

[2740566/1] 3



112
113

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST

‘Brenda James, City Clerk

[2740566/1]

ORDINANCE 2019-



~1 TN W o N —

o oo

10
11

12

13
14

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, AMENDING
CHAPTER 7, TO CLARIFY REGULATIONS CONCERNING BUILDINGS AND
CONSTRUCTION

WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest, Georgia Mayor and City Council are authorized by the
City Charter to regulate and to license the erection and construction of buildings and all other
structures and to adopt all required and permissive international codes as adopted by the State of
Georgia, and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council are' charged with preserving the health, safety and
welfare of the citizens of the City; and '

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council deem it necessary to adopt building and construction
regulations, as well as the International Property Maintenance Code, in order to ensure the safety
of buildings in the City.

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1: Section 7-24(b)(2)(f) of The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

f. All residential driveways, stops, patios, and walkways shall bear on properly compacted
“soil, foundation ledges or be doweled at slab. Maximum residential driveways slopes
shall not exceed 20 percent grade. At the entrance of a garage, the garage floor shall be

elevated two inches above the driveway or a drainage system approved by the director
shall be installed at the entrance to the garage. Residential garages and carports shall
contain not less than 19 feet six inches of actual automobile parking depth. Upen

£) O ol =
waE ] =

tEy o i N v,

Section 2: Section 7-143 of The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby
amended to read as follows: |

(a) Required. No building or structure or portion thereof shall be occupied or a change made in
the type of occupancy or the nature of the use of an existing building or part thereof until
after an appropriate certificate as requited by this section has been issued.

(b) Certificate of occupancy.

(1) Issuance. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued by the Building Official until
the building, structure and intended use complies with all applicable requirements of the
zoning ordinance, all construction is complete and all required final building, plumbing,
mechanical, gas, electric, fire, health, vegetation protection and site drainage
inspections have been performed and approved.

(2) Scope. The certificate of occupancy certifies that all final inspections have been
completed and the structure has been erected, to the best of the inspector's knowledge,

[2279867/1] | 1



40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB '
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

in compliance with applicable Code requirements at the time of the issuance of the
certificate, However, issuance of a cettificate of occupancy shall not excuse the builder,
contractor, tenant, or property owner from liability for any violation of the Code or any
other applicable laws, Occupancy shall be limited to the area or portion of a building or
structure defined by the building permit for which the certificate of occupancy is issued,

(c) Temporary certificate of occupancy.

(d)

(1)

)

(3)

Scope. A temporaty certificate of occupancy may be issued for non-residential buildings
or portions thereof, before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, for

" a specified period of time when it has been determined by the Building Official or

designee that no outstanding Code violations or deficiencies exist and the building may

be safely occupied for the use and time requested. A request for a temporary certificate

of oceupancy shall be made on such form as prescribed by the Building Official,

Issuance. A temporary certificate of occupancy shall be issued for stated purposes only

when construction has not been fully completed and all final inspections have not been

performed for a set time petiod as determined by the Building Official. '

Revocation. A temporary certificate of occupancy may be revoked, in writing, at the

option of the Building Official for any and/or all of the following reasons:

a. Violation of any building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire safety or site
development codes or regulations.

b. Failure to complete any stage of construction and/or site improvements required by

. the Building Official in a timely manner.

c. Unauthorized occupancy or use of any part or portion of the building or structure
other than the area or portion for which a temporary certificate of occupancy has
been granted. '

. Incorrect information supplied by the permit holder.
e. Any other conditions that may affect the health, safety and welfare of persons or

property.

Certificate of completion. A certificate of coinpletion shall” be. issued upon satisfactory
completion of a building, structure, and/or plumbing, mechanical, gas or electrical system,
when a certificate of occupancy is not required. The certificate of completion does not grant .
authority to occupy a building or structure or change the type of occupancy or nature of use
prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. '

[2279867/1] ' 2



79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89

90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

© 108

109
110
111

- 112

113

114

115

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB .
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

) J e H H
. . [l . . . *

(e) Contents of certificates. Certificates shall contain the following:

4y

2)
3)
)
)

(6)
@,
(8

®

The building permit number (or in the case of a certificate of completion, the
appropriate trade permit number). ‘

The address of the structure.

The name and address of the owner.

A description of that portion of the structure-for which the certificate is issued.

A statement that the described portion of the structure has been inspected for
compliance with the requirements of this Chapter.

The name of the Building Official.

The edition of the code under which the permit was issued.

If non-residential, the use and occupancy, in accordance with the provisions of chapter
3 of the International Building Code.

If non-residential, the type of construction as defined in chapter 6 of the International
Building Code.

(10)If non-residential, the design occupant load.
(11)If an automatic sprinkler is provided, whether the sprinkler system is required.
(12) Any special stipulations and conditions of the building permit.

(f) Revocation of certificares. The building official or designee may revoke certificates of
occupancy, certificates of completion, and certificates of change of tenant issued under
provisions of this Chapter, where it is shown that there have been either one or more of the

following:

(D) Changes or alterations in construction, type of permitted use or occupancy .
without written approval by the Building Official or designee.

(2) Changes or violations of the conditions of the certificate without written approval
by the Building Official or designee.

{3) Alterations, additions, or improvements to the building, structure, or systems
without permits and inspections required by this Chapter.

(4 Violation of any zoning, building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire safety or

site development codes or regulations.

[2279867/1] 3 g



116

117

118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142

143 -

144
145

146
147
148
149
150
151
152

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB .
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-
5 Any condition that may affect the building, structure or service system w}iich, in

(6)

the opinion of the director, renders the building, structure or service system
unsafe, dangerous or uninhabitable.

After a certificate has been revoked, a valid certificate shall not be issued until all
violations, changes, alterations, additions or improvements meet all requirements
of this Chapter as determined by the Building Official.

‘(g) Posting Floor Loads.

(1)

2)

(3)

Section 3:

Occupancy. An existing or new building shall not be occupied for any purpose
which will cause the floors thereof to be loaded beyond their safe capacity. The
Building Official may permit occupancy of a building for mercantile, commercial
or industrial purposes, by a specific business, when he is satisfied that such
capacity will not thereby be exceeded.

Storage and Factory-industrial occupancies. It shall be the responsibility of the
owner, agent, proprietor or occupant of Group S and Group F occupancies, or any
occupancy where excessive floor loading: is likely to occur, to employ a
competent architect or engineer in computing the safe load capacity. All such
computations shall be accompanied by a stamped and signed affidavit from the
architect or engineer stating the safe, allowable floor load on each floor in pounds
per square foot uniformly distributed. The computations and affidavit shall be
filed as a permanent record of the building department.

Signs required. Tn every building or part of a building used for storage, industrial,
or hazardous purposes, the safe floor loads, as reviewed by the Building Official
on the plan, shall be marked on plates of approved design which shall be supplied
and securely affixed by the owner of the building in a conspicuous place in each
story to which they relate. Such plates shall not be removed or defaced, and if
lost, removed or defaced, shall be replaced by the owner of the building.

Section 7-170 of The Code of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, is hereby

amended to read as follows:

Sec. 7-170. - Construction or work; approval and accessibility.

(a) Generally. Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed
for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be
construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions. of this Chapter or of other
applicable provisions of the Code. Inspections presuming to give authority to violate or
cancel the provisions of this Chapter or of other provisions of the Code shall not be valid. It
shall be the duty of the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed

[2279867/1]



153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168

169 .

170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179

-+ 180

181
182
183

184 -

185
186

187 .

188
189
190

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB |
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

for inspection purposes. Neither the Building Official nor the city shall be liable for any
expense entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection.
(b) Preliminary inspection. Before issuing a permit, the Building Official is authorized fo
examine, or cause to be examined, buildings, structures, systems and sites for which an
apphcatlon has been filed,
(¢) Required inspections. The Building Official, upon notification, shall make the mspectlons
set forth as follows:
(1) Building.

d.

Foundation and slab inspection. To be made after trenches are excavated, forms are
erected, and reinforcement is installed but before concrete is put in place. The
appropriate silt and erosion control measures must be in place and functional.
Damproofing inspection. To be made priot to backfill of crawl space or basement
foundation walls.

Pre-cladding/sheathing inspection. To be made after the roof, wall bracing, are
installed and prior to placement of exterior cladding. Rough inspections on trades
need not be complete for pre-cladding inspection.

Frame (rough) inspection. To be made after wiring, piping, chimneys, duct and
vents to be coneealed are in place and all fire blocking is in place this inspection
occurs before any insulation or wall coverings are installed.

Final inspection. To be made after the building or structure is completed in
compliance with this Code prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy.

(2) Electrical.

a.

[2279867/1]

Underground and slab inspection. To be made after trenches or ditches are
excavated, forms are erected, conduit or cable are installed, and before any backfill
or concrete is put in place,

Rough-in inspection. To be made after the roof, framing, fire blocking, bracing, and
wiring are in place and prior to the installation of insulation and wall and ceiling
membranes.



STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST . ORDINANCE 2019-

191 c. Temporary Power Inspection. Temporary approval for connection to the utility can

192 be granted prior to completion. The temporary connection is only valid for a period

193 not to exceed 90 days.

194 d. Findal inspection. To be made after the building or structure is complete, all

195 required electrical outlets, switches and fixtures are in place and properly connected

196 or protected, and the building or structure is ready for occupancy.

197 ,

198 (3) Plumbing, : :

199 a. Underground and slab inspeciion. To be made after trenches or ditches are '

200 excavated, forms are erected, piping installed and before any backfill or concrete is

201 put in place. The appropriate silt and erosion control measures must be in place and

202 functional. ‘

203 ‘ b. Rough-in inspection. To be made after the roof, framing, fire blocking and bracing

204 are in place and all water, soil, waste and vent piping is complete and prior to the

205 installation of wall and ceiling membranes.

206 c. Final inspection. To be made after the building is complete, and all plumbing

207 . fixtures and appliances are in place and properly connected, and the structure is

208 ready for occupancy.

209 d. Testing. Plumbing work and systems shall be tested as required in section 312 of

210 ' the International Plumbing Code. Tests shall be made by the permit holder and

211 observed by the Building Official.

212 (4) Mechanical.

213 a. Underground and slab inspection. To be made after trenches or ditches are

214 ' excavated, forms are erected, underground duct and fuel piping is instailed and

215 before any backfill and concrete is put in place.

216 b.  Rough-in inspection. To be made after the roof, framing, fire blocking and bracing

217 , are in place and all duct and fuel piping to be concealed are complete and prior to

218 the installation of wall and ceiling membranes.

219 ¢. No mechanical equipment or ductwork is allowed to be installed in any building
. 220 that is not adequately sealed from the weather. Any ductwork or equipment

221 contaminated by stormwater must be replaced to prevent a potential mold issue or

222 health hazard, as recommended by the DCA Mold Task Force.

223 d.  Final inspection. To be made after the building is complete, the mechanical system

224 and appliances are in place and properly connected and the structure is ready for

225 occupancy. ‘

226 (5) Gas.

227 a. Rough-in inspection. To be made after all piping authorized by the permit has been

228 ' installed and before any such piping hag been covered and concealed or any -

229 fixtures or appliances have been connected.

[2279867/1] 6



230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKAILB :
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

(d)

()
®

(8

b. Final piping inspection. To be made after all piping authorized by the permit has
been installed, after all portions which are fo be covered or concealed by wall and
ceiling membranes, plastering, stone or brickwork have been so concealed, and
before any fixtures or gas appliances have been connected. Log lighters shall be
permitted separately and inspected.

c. Testing 'This inspection shall include a gas pressure test.

d. Final inspection. To be made on all new gas work authorized by the permit and
such portions of existing systems as may be affected by the new work or any
changes, to engure compliance with the requirements of this chapter and to assure
that the installation and construction of the gas system is in accordance with
reviewed plans.

(6) Energy. ' .

a. Insulation inspection. To be made after all rough inspections are complete and
approved and before exterior wall insulation is concealed by wall board to check
installation of the exterior insulation envelope and to inspect that all holes and
cracks through the structure envelope have been sealed in an appropriate manner as
fo restrict air passage. _ A

b. Final inspection. To be made after the building is completed and ready for
occupancy. To verify installation and R-value of ceiling and floor insulation. To
verify correct SEER ratings on appliances. Verification of compliance with all state
amendments for the energy code in regards to sealing and compliance ceitificates
where applicable and properly posted.

Residential floodplain inspéctions. For construction permitted in areas prone to flooding as
established by table R301.2(1) of the International Residential Building Code, upon
placement of the lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical construction,
the building official shall require submission of a certification of the elevation of the lowest
floor, including basement, prepared by a registered professional engineer or land surveyor,
as required in section R327 of the International Residential Building Code.

Fire-resistant penetrations. Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistance-rated
assemblies shall not be concealed from view until inspected and approved.

Other inspections. In addition to any other inspections, the Building Official is authorized to
make or require other inspections of any construction work to ascertain compliance with the
provisions of this Chapter and other applicable provisions of the code that are enforced by
the city, ' -
Residential fire-resistance-rated construction inspections. Where fire-resistance-rated
construction is required between dwelling units or due to the location on the property, the
Building Official shall require an inspection of such construction after all lathing and/or
wallboard is in place, but before any plaster is applied, or before wallboard joints and
fasteners are taped and finished.

[2279867/1] 7




269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288

289

290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306

307

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-

(h) Inspection agencies. The Building Official is authorized to request and accept reports of
approved inspection agencies, provided such agencies satisfy the requirements of this
Chapter. '

(i) Pre-qualified alternate registered engineer inspections.

(1)

@

When it is evident that the city cannot provide an inspection service of construction
covered by this Chapter within two business days of receiving a valid written request
for an inspection, then, in lieu of an inspection by inspections personnel employed by
the city, any person, firm, or corporation engaged in a construction project which
requires an inspection, shall have the option of retaining, at their own expense, a pre-
qualified alternate registered professional engineer who holds a certificate of
registration issued under chapter 15 of title 43 of the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated, and who is not an employee or otherwise affiliated with or financially
interested in such person, firm, or corporation, to provide the required inspection. Pre-
qualified alternate registered professional engineers shall conduct inspections in
accordance with all applicable provisions of this Code and state law, including, but not
limited to, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-26, as amended.

The city shall provide for the pre-qualification of alternate registered engineers who
may perform inspections pursuant to this section. A pre-qualified alternate registered
engineer inspector who personally makes the inspection, shall hold, in addition to the
certificate registration required under chapter 15 International Code Council/ICC of title
43 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, a certification that matches his area of
expertise. Pre-qualified alternate registered engineers may provide inspections in their

. scope of expertise providing they hold the aforementioned certifications that match their

()

expertise. In lieu of personally holding an International Code Council certification, a
registered engineer may employ technicians who hold the required appropriate
International Code Council certifications to actually make the inspections. These
employees shall also be pre-qualified by the city, Inspection reports submitted to the
city shall contain both the certified technician's signature and the signature and seal of
the pre-qualified alternate registered engineer and their dates of certification.
Pre-qualified alternate registered engineer inspections and reports shall be accepted only
from persons or firms who have been pre-qualified by the Building Official. The
requirements, procedures, application forms and report forms shall be as required by the
Building Official. ' '

(i) Inspections requests. It shall be the duty of the holder of the permit or their duly authorized
‘agent to notify the building official when work is ready for inspection. It shall be the duty of
the permit holder to provide safe access to and a safe means for inspection of such work for
any inspections that arve required by this Chapter.

(k) Approval required. Work shall not be done beyond the point indicated in each successive
inspection without first obtaining the approval of the Building Official. The Building

[2279867/1] 8



308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344

345

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB

0

~ CITY OF STONECREST ' ORDINANCE 2019-

Official, upon notification, shall make the requested inspections and shall either indicate the

portion of the construction that is satisfactory as completed or shall notify the permit holder

or an agent of the permit holder wherein the same fails to comply with this Code. Any

portions that do not comply shall be corrected and such portion shall not be covered or

concealed until authorized by the Building Official.

Re-inspection fee. Re-inspection fees shall be required in accordance with the fee schedule

as adopted by the city council when work performed is required to be re-inspected due to the

following reasons:

(1) The re-inspection is not approved due to a failure to correct a previously noted code
violation on a prior inspection;

(2) The job is not ready for inspection when an inspection is requested and performed;

(3) The building or structure is not accessible and inspection cannot be performed;

(4) Work to be inspected has been covered or concealed and proper inspection cannot be
performed; or .

(5) Priorissuance of a stop work order requires re-inspection.

(m) Right-of-entry. Inspections required under the provisions of this Chapter shall be made by

()

(0)

®

the Building Official or designee. Upon presentation of proper credentials, the Building
Official or designee may enter the premises between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. to perform any
duty imposed by this Chapter, provided that the building official or designee has consent to
enter the premises or has obtained and presents an inspection warrant as described in this
Chapter.

Manufacturers and Fabricators. When deemed necessaty by the Building Official, he shall
make, or cause to be made, an inspection of materials or assemblies at the point of
manufacture or fabrication. A record shall be made of every such examination and
inspection and of all violations of the construction codes.

Inspéctions prior to issuance. of certificate of occupancy or completion. The Building
Official shall inspect, or cause to be inspected, at various intervals all construction or work
for which a permit is required, and a final inspection shall be made of every building,
structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system upon complehon prior.to issuance
of the certificate of occupancy or completion. '
Posting of permit. Work requiring a permit shall not commence until the permit holder or
his agent posts the permit card in a conspicuous place on the premises. The permit shall be
protected from the weather and located in such position as to permit the Building Official or
representative to conveniently make required entries thereon. This permit card shall be
maintained in such position by the permit holder until the certificate of occupancy or
completion is issued by the Building Official.

Section 4:

[2279867/1] .9




346
347
348
" 349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357

358
359
360
361
362
363

" 364

365
366
367
368
369
370
371

372
373"

374
375
376

377

378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST ORDINANCE 2019-
1. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that all sections,

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance. are and were, upon their

_ enactment, believed by the Mayor and City Council to be fully valid, enforceable and

congtitutional,

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and City Council that, to the
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the _

Mayor and City Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph,

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.

In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance
shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is
the express intent of the Mayor and City Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality,

‘or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid,

unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses,
sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent allowed
by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect,

All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
are hereby expressly repealed.

The within ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

[The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of The Code-of the City
of Stonecrest, Georgia, and the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered to
accomplish such intention.]

SO ORDAINED AND EFFECTIVE this the day of , 2019,

Approved:

Jason Lary, St., Mayor

As to form:

[2279867/1] 10




387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF DEKALB
CITY OF STONECREST

Attest:

Brenda James, City Clerk

[2279867/1]

11

ORDINANCE 2019-

City Attorney:




e THE CITY OF e

STHEHET

GEORGIA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: TMOD 18-0008 Arabia Mountain Overlay District and Map (1 Read)

() ORDINANCE () POLICY () STATUS REPORT
() DISCUSSION ONLY () RESOLUTION (X) OTHER
Date Submitted: 01/17 /19 Work Session: Council Meeting: 1/28/19 ( '

SUBMITTED BY: Nicole C.E. Dozier, Community Development Department Directg
Mera Cardenas, Arabia Mountain Ovetlay Committee Vice-Chair

PURPOSE: This is the introduction of the Arabia Mountain Overlay District regulations \ang
Map for review, discussion and approval.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Planning Commission recommended approval of this item at
the January 3, 2019 meeting,

OPTIONS: Defer back to the Planning Commission, Approve; Deny, or make Alternative
conditions

ATTACHMENTS:
#1  Planning Commission Staff Report

#2  Planning Commission PowerPoint Presentation




mmaesss== THE CITY OF

STONECAEST

GEORGI]A

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2019

Petition Number:

Applicant:

Project Location:

Piscussion;

GENERAL INFORMATION
TMOD 18-0008
Arabia Mountain Overlay Committee
District 5

Review and discussion on the Proposed Arabia Mountain Overlay
district and map.



WORKING MAP{ LAYERS,

_'Em Cutrent Greenspace N
£/ Geaigla Pevrer B
A stonecrest Gv'allay
. v ., E

CURRENT ZONING | -
15 - Heighbodhead Siihﬁﬁlpg
£ ¢-L - Local Commecial '
M C-2- General Comgiclal

A

: i
& ot - 0ffice-Instilutiopat-...
B 00 - Gifee-Dislributidn

« [ reoposedamalia Monatain Byeslay
£3 londihe Natjore! Historical bistrict | Rough Boundary

B8 01T - Office-Institutionsk- Transitional | | RE - Residential Estate B 14R-1 - Med Density Residential

"‘ . ) "
N - Lighit Industiial ! TR RS - Residential Med Lot
M-2 - Heavy Industyfal ] RGo - Residential Small Lot

4 . . ' b
B MU-4 - Mixed-Use High Density £ RSM - Small {01 Residential pi

{1 r-100- Residential Med Lot J 14R-2:- ed Denslty Rasideatial
- {74 R85 - Residenlial Med Lot '




il

HEAM

-~

paggaWEDr .

G T
i 45 tings fid
Winsk " dy,&l‘ U]

]

2

ok

Fmnin 3r

Salom nd
2

Bramblewoo)

Klonllke .

g
H

0 0.5 1 Miles Vo, :
j‘ I 2 | & ©0penSt|:;ém43p {and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

Preserve

Fine Mountain
%
2 s

o

B

R

Plunien g,
&

«
=1
=

=8
=
B

=}

§
@,
Scoll 1y
@
[
>

o

=

¥

o,

® @

SN

PROPOSED

RABIA MOUNTAIN OVERLAY

D Proposed Arabia Mountain Overlay

: Existing Overlays




27-3.4 — DIVISION 4- ARABIA MOUNTAIN CONSERVATION OVERLAY DISTRICT

Sec. 3.4.1. - Title.
The provisions contained within this division are the regulations of the Arabia Mountain
Conservation Overlay District.

Sec. 3.4.2. - Purpose and infent.
The purpose and intent of the city council in establishing the Arabia Mountain Conservation
Overlay District (AMCOD) is as follows:

A. To provide for the protection of natural resources
boundaries of the AMCOD, so as to protect ands
with these natural resources and the aesthetigeguahi
the policies of the Stonecrest Comprehensize Plan;

Seenic views of areas within the
ance the public welfare assoctated
ithin this area, consistent with

B. To prov1de reasonable and creative pl g and developmenBwithin the AMCOD while
preservmg the natural land form and fefghres, trees and tree candfveand the views to and

nservagsn casements to appr oprxate public
] d authorized to hold easements in perpetuity
putsuant o the @"’Emgla tion Easement Act (0.C.G.A. 44-10 and 12-
6;5_3@ purp_T—m Sholecting histarcal and arch logical areas, the habitat of
Sred animal antiplant Species (as defined in the federal Endar;gered
153T=8hd the Endanpéred Wildiife Act of 1973), providing passive
atlo:@portumtles preserving the cultural history of the area,
ithinHacity, and protecting scenic views to and from Arabia

eveiopment standards that will adhere fo common design
[ikle but are not limited to: deep setbacks from the main road;
strategic buffer Zoresshome “clustering”; shorter strests within a devélopment and shared
open spaces connected by trails, walkways and paths,

Sec. 3.4.3. - District boundaries,

The boundaries ofthe AMCOD shall be depicted on the official zoning maps entitled "Official
Zonine Map. Citv of Stonecrest, Georgia, Arabia Mountain Conservation Overlay District™)the
CAMOOD) overlay mans™). The Official Zoning Map. Clty of Sionecrest, Georgia. Arabia
Mountain Conservation Overlay District. 1o be adopted contemporancously with this chapter,
ropgether with all explanatory information contained or referenced thergon. is hereby adopted by
reference angd declared to be a part of this chapter,

[2372313/4} 1 AMCOD
REVISED BY COMMITTEE




The AMCOD overlay maps shalj be adopted contemporaneouslv with this chapter in digitad
format and contained on a compact disk 1o be maintained i its original, unedited and unaltered
form by the clerk to the citv council, A printed eopy of the compact disk's contents depicting the
AMCOR overlav maps on the date of its initial adoption shall alsg be mainiained in its original,
uncdited and unaltered form by the clerk to the city council e-as-shewr—in bbbt 27-Ac—The
beundaries may-beexpanded by-a-zoning map-amendment-adepted-pursaantto-this-chapter which
amendmentshat-be-ineorperated-hereinrandmade-apartofthis-chapter 25

Sec, 3.4.4. - Applicabitity of regulations.

This division establishes standards and procedures thatéa“lg;a y to development of any lot or
portion thereof which is in whols or in part contained wi 1e boundaries of the AMCOD. The
procedures, standards, and criteria shall appty only t of the subject property within
the boundaries of the district.

| Seertdidcb—Sented-SHePlan

ﬁ\%ﬁt—bwbﬁm‘ced—m—&eceﬁ%a e-wrihrveed - = { Formatted: Indent: Firstiine: 0°

&eeﬂﬂ@ma%%eﬁse

A The punclpal uses of land an%huctm@_whlch aredllowed in the AMCOD are as is
provided by the gpghcable underling zoﬁ@tﬁct, exgept fDl those listed in B below,

1.
2. 8
3. Fairgronndor Amusement Park
4. Swimming pools as part of a commmercial Recreation, Qutdoor use or Regreation
club: but not including swimming pools incidental to Open space, ¢lubhouse or
pool amenity—eommerciat
3. Coliseum or stadiam, except for outdoor Concert Halls
6. Nightclub or late night establishment
7. Ouidoor storage. mini-warchouses. and storage buildingsend—indaorstorage

8. Pawn shops
9, Mortuary or Crematorium

2372311/1 2 AMCOD
REVISED BY COMMITTEE



10. Alcohel Outlets

11. Salvage yards and junk yards

12. Motel or Extended Stay Motel

13. Shelter for homeless persons

14, Transiticnal housing facility

15, Fuel Dezlers, Fuel Pumps and Accessory Fuel Pumps

16. Automobile and truck rental and leasing. Automobile brokerage, Automobile
mall. Automaobile recovery and siorage. Automobils renfal and leasing,
Automobile repair _and  maintenance.  major, Aulomobile  repair and
maintensnce,  minor.  Automobile  salesZs Automobile  service  siation,
Aulomobile_ypholstery shop, Automoﬁ@%ﬁ“ﬁsh/\mx service, Recreational
velicle/boat sales and service. Preightsseieioe, Transportation equipment and
storage or maintenance (vehicled. ¢ '&%tomac yard

%—ﬁd%ﬁa%ﬁmebﬂe—he&%&ﬁé—&a#emﬁ%ﬂﬂ%mewgekw
bﬂkéh}g&,—&%em&e,—nﬁmka@f@p&ﬁ—waa #&&-&%@—&%ww—%ahaﬁw

17. Pasline-Commercial parkEEEgarage/structure: Cont ial parking otslots-er
commerela-garages

18. Convenience store

19. Drive-through fagili

21. Check cashing faciffe:
22. Heavy equipment stofgfig
23.T mclaﬁ“gs;

24, W,

25, 88

26. BusTEton or teTunaE —9

2627 An?c@zmmf mhl\%mu ambuiance service, Dispateh offic

d ac@Essory structures.
The tessory uses of | res which are allowed in the AMCOD are as is provided
by the appl?afhle underlying Zoning JiSE, subject to the limitations and stendards contained
within this divisiam, .

Sec. 3.4.7. - Lot coverage.
Except as provided T5s8e24.9, Jk-ot coverage within the AMCOD shall not exceed twenty-
five (25) percent of net lot [(BrBa-exceptwithbr Hny-home communities.

Sec, 3.4.8. - Clearing and grading of lots.

No iot shall be cleared and graded to an extent exceeding thirty-five (35) percent of the net lot
area. Said limitation is intended to permit twenty-five (25) percent lot coverage as allowed in
section 3.4.7 above, and to permit appropriate slopes from the remaining natural land contouss to
the finished site grades, ‘

2372314/1] 3 AMCODR
REVISED BY COMMITTEE



Sec. 3.4.9- Development Standards 00 —— conze

There shall be no impervious -
surfaces with in the seventy-five

(75) foot stream buffer, All dwelling
units shall be provided convenient
access 1o all green space throughout

the development via pedestrian

paths or trails.

Cluster Development

raditions] Davelopment

A. Conservation Communities Gy Ll g o ‘ oyl e ko
tained, e bate v ingle ey, .
(residential /subdivisions) e Mtumuahes o sens rglecaded eads

pedesnan and mdationfetidly Sarchonmt
tal land area exciuding

Maximum density: Eight (8} dwelling units to t
undevelopable areas listed below:

1. Streams and stream buff
2. Wetlands
3. Rock outcroppmgs

except foral

Minimum ot

Green space

Passivetecreational areas
Trails and Green ways
Bikeways and paths
Mature wooded arcas

th e b

Greenspaces shall be preserve and maintained by one of the following:

a, FEstablishment of a mandatory home owner’s association (HOA) fo own and
maintain the common green space.

2372311711 4 AMCOD
REV&SED BY COMMITTEE



b. Dedication of legally described and platted “greenspace” to a land trust.

Minimum building setback adjacent to public or private street(s):

» Trom thoroughfares, arterials and collectors: 30 f.
*  Local streets: 20 ft.

P oo {Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5%, No bulilets or numbering }

sontrel. Tihe- destgn ofthc -

.of the City Engineer:

Omit curbs where p0351b
d. Asan altematme to curbs%iﬁ tterseablaw run GEEom roofs and pavements to
Jirough grss wa]ﬁ?ééﬁhr tiofrbasins. Use plant materials
“m~atu; al*5ifer to oil and pollution.
Feagn -vehicular traffic with in the development

| and commercial areas,

‘batRlacy buffer is required {per
=land area designated to the exterior buffer may be used as
h

D. Trails, Trails maybe constructed with in the buffer. The maximum width is eight (8) feet
and must be located within the first twenty-five (25) percent of the buffer furthest from
the exterior boundary line.

Sec. 3.4.9.1 — Non- residential zoning district dimensional requirements,

[2372313/1 5 ’ AMCGD
REVISED BY COMMITTEE



All non-residential districts shall be developed in accordance with the repulations for the

ée:—?%ge—Nelghborhood Shopping (NS) Distziet, R ‘{ Formatted: Highlight

Sec, 3.4.9.1.a Design Standards &N@We@&%é&féé—aﬁ%ﬁ—eﬁeé—ées&ﬂﬁ—ﬂ%aﬁéﬂféﬁ—aﬁﬁﬁwéﬂ%

%EMMW1MMMEMM@IWMBMl{WM e-Stonecrest
Overlay-offering seme-standardization-and protection-Please-letme-knovw-if-yow-want-me-to-pull

tenct;

Buildings, New commercial buildings and renovations shall conform to the guidelines
noted below.

1. Pedestrian Amenities — All buildings shall be configined to allow safe, convenient,
direct and continuous access for pedestrians to g ary building entrances, Principle
buitding entry shall open directly on to the pubhc’?ﬂ%h way.

2, “Build-to™ tne (i.e. “Building fagade liseZyr= The buﬂdmmll be setback five (5)
feet from the buildable areas as indicatgdsat
canopies are not counted in building facads |

other than buildings, such as ATMs and sTilar elemsfits, shall not
the street than the building fagade lines.

3. Building height. All new b
height thirty (35) feet.

ons shall occur approximately every thirty (30} feet of
fength and may be accomplished by: the use of pilasters; the
r similar means intended to create the appearance of

5. Entrances. All first story uses adjacent to a sidewalk shall have a primary pedestrian
enfrance, which faces, is visible from, and is directly accessible from said sidewalk, All
first story businesses with more than sixty {60) feet of frontage along sidewalks shall
provide ons (1) pedestrian entrance for every sixty (60) linear feet of frontage or fraction
thereof.

6. Parking: Parking areas should be located to the side or rear of the building. When
parking areas are tocated in front of the building, a buffer of 10 feet of shrubbery or
landscape trees is required. All vegetation should be native to the region.

[2272310/1) 6 AMCQOD

REVISED BY COMMITTEE




Cross Access: In order reduce traffic conflicts, cross access drives with adjacent
properties must be considered. This may include the interconnection of parking areas or
a shared drive between properties.

7. Storefront canopies at least five (5) feet in depth extending over the sidewalk are
recommended at all retail frontage for relief from inclement weather and for shade, These
should be roofed with plass, metal, or fabric wholly supported by brackets or cables
attached to the building fagade, Columns to support canopiss ave not permitted in the
pubiic right of way (hereafter called “R.0.W.”}. Awnings and canopies shall not include
signage on them, except when such signage is located within an apron that is lss than
twelve inches in height and is subject to all other ap &bl sign requitements of this
document.

$. Building Finish Materials. Each street-faci acade shall have an exterior
finish skin primarily of Lithonia tidal gre; ﬂnlte Materizzthat may be combined with
the granite is limited to: wood, exterior cementitious stiegg, rustic or cut stone,
architectural cast concrete, and glass p . No more than moﬁﬁitional materials may
be used. Concrefe masonry units or artifié@lmaterials having the appearance of wood,
and/or stonte are not permitted as a finish

8. & gg; 2. Bu;ldm@cades Faging a public R.O. W, shall be iiluminated for safety
hetics. ngh fifg shall be deslgned fo avold pl oducmg glare in the pubhc

minimized Fluminaires.

9, Utility service lines — Must be provided via underground conduit or pipes. Overhead
utility setvice is not permissible in the Overlay. New construction on existing sites
within Overlay must include replacement of all above-ground utility service lines
with underground service or otherwise fully concealed utitity service to buildings
and sites.

10, Building Numbering, Building numbering shall be located above or beside primary
entrances of building, Numbering shall be clearly visible fiom sidewalks. All
numbering shall be 6 inches in height.

23723137 7 AMCOD
’ REVISED BY COMMITTEE



11, Dumpsters, Loading Areas and Mechanical Electrical and Plumbing Features shall

be sereened so as not to be visible from any public plaza, outdoor dining area, public
R.O.W., or residential area. All dumpsters shall be located behind buildings and shall
be enclosed by opaque fences or walls made of stone, brick, wood, or stuceo; and
these enclosures shall have opaque gates made of wood or metal, Chain-link gates
are not permitted,

Roofiop Mechanical features shall be set at least ten {10) feet fdm the edges of roofs and

screened vertically from view through use of parapet walls ilar features. Additionally, all
such features greater than five (5) feet in height shall be.st ast twenty (20) feet behind front
building facades,

Sec, 3.4.9.2 - Height limitation.

A, Except as provided in section 5.2.5, ar;d in Suls
Arabla Mountain Natulal Reseun

opy existmon the lot u;gon which the tower or antenna is
o said l@en no portion of such tower or antenna shall

sntenna tha Xtend above the top of the existing mature tree
SectiGER 1., shall consist of an alternative tower structire that is

Sec. 3.4.10. - Tree remova '_and replacement.

No trees other than dead, dangerous or diseased trees shall be removed from any lot except
within areas of permissible grading as provided in section 3.4.8 above. Removal of trees should
be certified by an arborist and/or by city permit.

Sec. 3.4.11. - Protection of steep slopes.
No lot or portion of a lot having a grade in excess of fifteen (15) percent shall be altered,

Sec. 3.4.12. - Driveways.

2372311/11 8 AMCOD
REVISED BY COMMITYEE




The director of planning is authorized to approve shared driveways for two (2) or more
dwellings within the Arabia Mountain Natural Resource Protection Overlay District in order to
minimize lot coverage and tree removal within the district,

Sec. 3.4.13. - Recording of conservation easements.

The director of planning shall record, after approval by the city attorney and the city council,
conservation easements within the Arabia Mountain Natural Resource Protection Overlay District
which are made in favor of City of Stonecrest, Georgia:

oning maps.
ZOIHOE maps any conservation
e entity authorized to hold such

Sec. 3.4.14. - Notation of all conservation easements on offici

The director of planning shall cause to be noted on the
easements granted within the district to any public o
easements.

Sec. 3.4.15. - Lighting,
No light standard shall be instalfed thats
lighting element of any kind shal be placed upi

nds above the heigliznf the tree canopy. No
y structure so as fo eXtgnd above the height of

the tree canopy. Na light spillage of any kind is Pegmitted e said tree Cail camapy except as may
- be otherwise required by any applicable requirementaife “state or local lﬁi:

Sec. 3.4.18. — AMCOD Advisory CommitiecReserved

Defindtions sppeoved-be-the commifee 32412818

PassivePark-or Reereationr Passive~Thefollowing uses-may be—akeweé—%ﬁ{éﬁﬁ—éhe—pi—ﬁﬂaﬁ
eomeﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁaﬂe—pﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ%—ﬁﬂaeﬂﬂdes—pﬁﬁﬁ—gﬁmwﬁ arking
spaces-{pervious-surfaces-enconraged-and plenic-and-restroom faeilities-The folloving

[23723134 8 . AMCOD
: REVISED BY COMMITTEE




%%HM%&&HWWWWWWMWHWW
ﬁﬁwﬁtﬁﬁeﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁhd%dféﬁﬂﬁiieesme&mﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%mg
paths for passive recreatiosaetivitessuchas  bui-not imited-te; comurmity-hiking,
running-dog-walking, bird-watchingbilking and similar-outdooraetivities{This
definitionwastaleen-from Cwinnelt County-codes)

DogPark—a-dedicatedfenced-in-aren-where dogsrun-off-leash-inthe presenecand
eonirotoftheirovwners-or handlersThe-eityrof Stoncerestmay-designan-ordinanecethat

furthor definesandapply-standardsto-the developmentofdogparkss, .

32
E i

Bed-&-Breakfast—Aecessoruse WL%—tf-we%emeﬁ%ﬁez—whe
restdesin-the-dweth %«wm%eqﬂ%w&mmﬁé&@e&swﬁ—&eakﬁaﬁ%aﬁﬁ&%—be

previded-to-the-enstomers-atRo-extra cost-Hor-the pugllss
meshsaperson-whe-paysfor-the sleeping nccommpsnens &

Chapter 2. The AMLOD admm \f"(f@‘f@%nmv mu,l =) anﬂhmnh for_variances. rezoning
and special land use permit &D}JIICSTZDBS'% of ez submissi&iEaf the application to the Planning
Commission or Board of Zoning Appeia The FEREoD adwma committee shall act in_an

advisory capacity oni@cmg its E2o __mmg—;ﬁmﬁn cael application in writing to the

Planning Commissigfs@FBoard S oning ARgRaldepolyinFamestandards or criteria contained in
Article 7. The ﬁmu@ﬁhe AMEBD 1o nm@reummﬂencT\hon on an apphication shall not

invalidate anv zonine dc%n ar 0@31 On 01N & vafgimcc and shall not be a condition precedent to
final action.eremeanpl icat e

ReviewProesss—Theeommamorecontmendssrreview process similar- to-Dellalb’s—And
advisory L recommending bothmade ol Snembers-fone front cach district) appointed-by-the
mayor-and-confirmed by-counsii—Thiswouldinelude-SLUPS  Rezoning appHeation;and
redevelopment plats: %

From-Bekalb:

Commuiyrcouneilreviewof propesedupplicationsSpectatd ﬁﬂ&ﬂ%ﬂ"ﬁei—{ﬁit
applieations-shallberertewedbethecommunitycounetl aecordingtothe proceduresin

seeton7a-6-Privrtopresentaton-to-the-eommunitrconneileachapplieation-fora

{2372311/1] 10 ’ : AMCGD
i REVISED BY COMMITTEE

‘{ Formatted: Font: {Asian) Japanese

{ Formatted: Not Highlight

\‘( Formatted: Not Highlight

{ Formatted: Justified

— A

’{ Formatted: Not Highlight




speeial-land-use-permitshallbe-madeavailable-to the-appropriste community eeunetbin
seesrdanee-vith-the provisfonsofseeonsn-6-foreonsideration:

%gi%@ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁhﬁ%b%%ﬁdﬂ%ﬂhﬁé&%@%ﬁ&%ﬂe
want-g-prevision-thatrouldrestriet-billboards from the-overlay:

2372313/1 i1l AMCOD
REVISED BY COMMITTEE




Attachment #2
1/3/2019

Planning Commission PowerPoint
Presentation

TMOD-18-0008

Arabia Mountain Overlay District and Map
(1%t Read)







"12LGSI(] AB[IDA() TIBIINOTA]

BIQBIV oG} O} PIIR[I SINEW A1) SmApms Jo ssodmd oty 107 RIFI000) S0108T0IS
Jo A oy JO SonItue)) SULISAg AR[ISA() UIBIUNOJA BIGRIY 9 SB UAOUY
OO AJOSIAPE UB USI[(RISS O SUAZID S)I pue AW U} JO JS9ISIUY 18°q 24}
UI ST J1 1BU3 POUILILISISP 2ARY 1S9I05U0LS JO A0 913 JO [I0Uno)) AL Pue I0ABIA] o4t




131z0Q 9[02IN
SIIEH [9BYDIN
SnaJejn aneq
yliws Awwe]
uepJor A|le)
umoug 1107

siyIeN [A4RYD

W31uy| s1ulag

ougepn eylsr

pieqgny ol
seuapJe) BISJA Jieyd-0)

G 10L11SIQ ‘BeWOopY SUeIg UBLUIOM[IDUNOD

T 10143SIJ “UouUB|D AWWI UBWI[I2UNOD

7 10141s1Q
‘Iauin] 984095 UBW|IdUNOY 1ileYD-0)

SO PIWWOY) JOJINY




TT AInr

IT 29Q Lcunfg
€0 10 9 unf
6¢ 1das cc Aein
TT 1das 6 ABIN
¢ 8ny Gz Jdy

g 3ny 1¢ 1BIN
gz AInf 8¢ g=4

SSUISIIA ST

SN IWWIOD) dODINY



Greenspace — One of the city’s greatest assets













‘Ajlunwiwos pauueid

[|9M e Ul JusWdo[aAsp |eldJsWWod pooyloqysiau
pue jenuapisal UISEINODUD 3|IYM SIINIINLS

pue salls Jueayiudis A|jeinynd pue Ajjealiolsiy

PUE $324Nn0sal |einjeu UO Juswdojaaap mau

0 speduwli [BNSIA puUe [BIJUBWUOLAUS Y] SZIWIUiW
"JuawdolaAap pue usisap sUs Ul AHAIIRRID 10}
mojle o} Ayjiqixa)y Suipiaoid 9)lym ueIUNOA BIgelY
40 Aineaq 2]uads pue [einJ 3y} aAIasaId 0] syPas

A 1911 :AejianQ 1s0409uU0]8

SIS RS IR VG HELID

4 T paayt 2 o reop Gupmegy OrsR S
M pHo »] BTl A} QR W O pEIRTRY

124517 ABHBAQD UOKNIBI04]
55IN052Y [BINEN LIBJUNOA BIGEIY
3U1 jo uonelaldialul 8yl 46 SUCIIEPUSWILIDIIY




LI

ul

s ]
Hleal=agrs i
RN ANYT Tenlond

Ay Zmpes s, BT

R

A LR | TN R £y WL, el ]

ALY VM B T Ol




281 UNYT3IY
AgLang mansay
2andd efid
‘ EOTASYFIIN U
Arepunog uBnoy [ 22umg reauonsy jevolen syipy

SHIAYT SV OND













WBdoBASQ ENUSPISaY] [RUOTUSALOD) ’ juatrdolaas(] [eRUSPISSY JBISNID) / UOIBAIBSUOD)







wdy ‘Ipuno) Ao - (agl) Tz Adenuer ‘Aepuoin «
wdg ‘uoissiwwio) Sujuue|d — g Adenuey ‘Aepsiny | «
's8uizesw agnd

£T 19quiada( ‘Aepsiny] 1 1UISIQ«

8T Jaquiadaq ‘Aepsan] :g 1ou3sig«

ST Jaquwiadaq ‘Aepanies :T 101110«
:SSU[198W |BUOIRUWLIOLN|

NO3'e31S9403U0IS@IDIZOPN :01 [lews Ag

¢ SIUBWIWIOYD




	Council Meeting Agenda 01282019
	Council Minutes 01142019
	#1 Amendment to Purchasing Policy
	#2 Quicket Agreement
	#3 Road Analysis Execution
	#4 Citizens Pothole Oversight Committee
	#5 Pothole Tracker
	#6 Ord. to Amend Chapter 2 Article III
	#7 SPLOST Program Management
	#8 Creation of Youth Council
	#9 Creation of Youth Council Advisory Committee
	#10 Historic and Cultural Commission
	#11 Appoint Member Arabia Mountain Committee
	#12 Appoint Member Stonecrest Education Committee
	#13 Appoint Stonecrest Finance Committee
	#14 Appoint Steering Committee IGA East Metro CID
	#15 Appoint Members SPLOST Citizens Oversight Advisory
	#16 Appoint Members Film Committee
	#17 TMOD 18-0007 Modify Short Term Vacation Rentals
	#18 TMOD 18-0008 Arabia Mountain Map



